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INTRODUCTION
THIS REPORT LOOKS BACK ON WHAT WAS THE SECOND
YEAR OF THE PANDEMIC, A YEAR IN WHICH WE
BECAME USED TO DOING THINGS DIFFERENTLY. WE
DEMONSTRATED WHAT HAS BECOME THE NORM FOR
CATCH22; AN ABILITY TO BE AGILE, FLEXIBLE, AND
RESPONSIVE TO THE NEEDS OF THOSE WE WORK
WITH, WHETHER IT IS THOSE WHO PARTICIPATE IN OUR
SERVICES OR THOSE WHO COMMISSION US.
We have stated before that Catch22 is an optimistic
organisation, an organisation that consistently
looks to find solutions and support those we work
with to move forward in their lives. This optimism is
critical when working with our constituents, many of
whom have been disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic. From those who are digitally excluded
to those who have gone missing, been subject to
exploitation, got caught up in gangs and violence to
those who have needed support in finding work or
in finding somewhere safe to live. The capacity of
our colleagues to maintain their own positivity has
been crucial in their ability to provide the support
required by those we work with.

This report captures the breadth of Catch22’s
activity – a set of stories and insights that clearly
demonstrates the concept of cradle to career
support. It was the year in which Ripplez Community
Interest Company joined us, bringing with them a
capability to work with women who repeatedly have
children who are removed into the care system.
This way of working exemplifies our fundamental
belief in the importance of relationships in creating
sustainable change in the lives of those blighted by
a range of seemingly insurmountable obstacles.
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The report highlights several significant
developments in the ongoing evolution of Catch22,
these include the opening of the Catch22 MAT’s
state of the art school, The Austen Academy, in
Basingstoke for children with autistic spectrum
disorders to the securing of nine personal well-being
contracts from the Ministry of Justice to engage
with individuals working to break free from cycles of
offending and re-offending. In addition, we continued
to develop new ways of reaching those we aim to
work with and in achieving our charitable objectives.
To this end, we created a new joint venture company
with our Australian Partners, The Angus Knight Group
and through this venture secured a Restart contract
with the Department of Work and Pensions.
So, this has been yet another busy, energising,
and engaging year. A year in which we touched the
lives of over 160,000 individuals across England
and Wales. None of this can be achieved without
the considerable insight, foresight and sheer
professionalism of our board, the trust placed
in us by our commissioners and funders, the
enthusiasm and commitment of our volunteers and
fundamentally the energy, drive and undying
passion and belief of the staff who go to work
every day to try and make a difference.

TERRY DUDDY,
Chair of Trustees

CHRIS WRIGHT,
Chief Executive Officer

More than

160,000

IN THE
LAST
YEAR…

service users
supported

Over 100
services

1,500 staff
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JUSTICE
“IT’S BEEN A YEAR PACKED WITH NEW ACTIVITY THANKS
TO THE 9 MINISTRY OF JUSTICE PERSONAL WELLBEING
CONTRACTS WE SECURED – AND THE FANTASTIC CODE4000
MERGING WITH CATCH22.
“OUR VICTIMS’ SERVICES GO FROM STRENGTH TO STRENGTH,
HELPING THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE WHO HAVE BEEN VICTIMS OF
CRIME. CATCH22’S ROYAL PATRON, HRH THE PRINCESS ROYAL,
VISITED OUR GANGS SERVICE IN WOLVERHAMPTON, AND OUR
THROUGH THE GATE WORK RECEIVED HIGH PRAISE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT MONITORING BOARD.
“WE’RE EXPECTING THIS YEAR TO BE NO
LESS BUSY AND NO LESS IMPACTFUL!”
Lisa Smitherman, Director of Justice

LAST YEAR
• More than 42,000
service users
supported
• 100% commissioners
satisfied or very
satisfied with our work
• Our Straight Up service
launched, supporting
people aged 16-30
associated or at risk
of involvement in gang
culture into training
and work
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GANGS, VIOLENCE REDUCTION
AND PERSONAL WELLBEING
LAST YEAR WE SUPPORTED 2,642
SERVICE USERS THROUGH OUR GANGS,
VIOLENCE REDUCTION, PERSONAL
WELLBEING AND REPARATION SERVICES

Take a look at this Channel 4 piece featuring our Wolverhampton Gangs Service
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In May 2021, Catch22 was awarded 9 contracts to deliver personal wellbeing support for prison leavers on licence,
those requiring post-sentence supervision and those serving community or suspended sentences. The contracts
form part of the Ministry of Justice’s Commissioned Rehabilitative Services and we deliver across the following
Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) regions: London, West Mercia, Avon and Somerset, Dorset, Thames Valley,
Hampshire and Isle of Wight, Devon and Cornwall, Wiltshire and Gloucestershire.
Service users accessing Personal Wellbeing engage in interventions in 4 key areas:

FAMILY & SIGNIFICANT OTHERS:

LIFESTYLE & ASSOCIATES:

Helping service users develop positive family
relationships and avoid harmful ones

Helping service users improve their pro-social selfidentity and ability to access community-based
support networks

EMOTIONAL WELLBEING:

SOCIAL INCLUSION:

Helping service users to develop coping skills
and strategies to regulate mood and demonstrate
perspective-taking and self-care by avoiding risky
situations

Helping service users to develop and sustain social
networks to reduce initial social isolation and
develop resilience and perseverance
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THROUGH THE GATE
LAST YEAR WE WORKED WITH
26,069 SERVICE USERS WITHIN
THE CUSTODIAL ESTATE

OFFENDER MANAGEMENT
AT HMP THAMESIDE
Catch22 provides Offender Management services and support for adult male prisoners from entry to prison right
through to their transition back into community life. Support is aimed at improving each prisoner’s prospects on
release – from accessing education and training to addressing criminogenic needs – and is prioritised according
to sentence length, risk level and complexity of need.
As a London reception prison taking from the surrounding community, there is a significant cohort of prisoners
from local gangs. At the end of the year, Thameside held 160 prisoners with a known gang membership from 67
separate gangs. Catch22 runs the dedicated gangs service to support the management of the prison environment
to reduce the risk posed by gang-involved prisoners. Our approach focuses on rehabilitation and offering
alternatives to the status and safety provided by gangs, which has been shown to be more effective than the
suppression-only approaches used in many prisons.

“IT IS PLEASING TO NOTE THAT THIS NEW APPROACH TO
GANGS APPEARS TO BE WORKING, WITH THE PERCENTAGE OF
VIOLENCE ATTRIBUTED TO GANG MEMBERS FALLING FROM
15% IN THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2020
TO 11% IN THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD APRIL TO JUNE 2021.”
“THE OFFENDER MANAGEMENT UNIT CONTINUED TO OPERATE
EFFECTIVELY DURING THE PANDEMIC”
Independent Monitoring Board report, 2021
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“OFFENDER MANAGEMENT UNIT (OMU) STAFF WERE DOING
SOME EXCELLENT WORK IN THE PRISON – THEY PROACTIVELY
CONTACTED PRISONERS, WERE A VISIBLE PRESENCE ON THE
WINGS AND PROVIDED GOOD SUPPORT. THIS WAS THE BEST
PROVISION I HAD SEEN DURING THE LAST YEAR

CODE4000
Newly merged with Catch22, Code4000 delivers computer programming training, or coding, in UK prisons
and is the first organisation of its kind in Europe. Our curriculum guides a novice programmer through their
very first steps in coding to becoming a full-stack (fully trained) software developer.

“WE BELIEVE THAT ANYONE CAN LEARN TO CODE, AND WE
SUPPORT OUR STUDENTS THROUGH A TRANSFORMATIVE
JOURNEY THAT NOT ONLY BUILDS THEIR CODING SKILLS
BUT HAS A MARKABLE EFFECT ON CONFIDENCE, SELFESTEEM, AND WELLBEING.”
Jim Taylor, Director, Code4000

Many Code4000 graduates have gone on to set up
their own web-development agencies, and we have
pioneered employment into the Financial Technology
sector with graduates now working as software
developers in high-street banks. With more
prison leaders looking to secure a Code4000
academy in their establishment, we hope
to reach more people with our innovative
curriculum and change yet more lives
through teaching tech.
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VICTIM SERVICES

12,000
victims

of crime supported

95%
satisfied

with the support
they’ve received

Our Hertfordshire Beacon service retrieved

£696,370 for victims of fraud
in the last year

Our victims services continue to thrive, providing emotional and practical support in the home and community
for victims of crime, along with crime prevention advice. We have experience delivering a range of victim services
including restorative justice, domestic abuse, substance misuse and gangs. We use this experience to inform the
development of our victim services, in order to create innovative and localised services with strong partnerships to
meet the needs of victims in each area.

‘YOU HAVE HELPED ME TO GET BACK ON TRACK, I AM PROUD
OF HOW FAR I HAVE COME AND I AM LOOKING FORWARD TO
THE FUTURE’,
Jane, Service User, Leicestershire Victim First
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YOUNG PEOPLE
AND FAMILIES
“THE EFFECTS OF THE PANDEMIC HAVE HIT MANY OF THE
YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES WE WORK WITH INCREDIBLY
HARD. INCIDENTS OF CHILDREN GOING MISSING AND
BEING EXPLOITED CONTINUE TO RISE. MANY PEOPLE ARE
SUFFERING WITH POOR MENTAL HEALTH AND STRUGGLING
TO COPE WITH THE FINANCIAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT OF
MONTHS OF LOCKDOWNS AND UNCERTAINTY.
THERE HAS NEVER BEEN MORE DEMAND FOR THE SERVICES
WE OFFER, AND IT’S TESTIMONY TO THE HARD WORK OF OUR
STAFF THAT THE 9,000 PLUS PEOPLE WE WORK WITH ARE
SATISFIED WITH OUR SUPPORT, FEEL SAFER AS A RESULT
AND REPORT IMPROVED MENTAL HEALTH.”
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KATE WAREHAM,
Director of Young People
and Families

MIDLANDS
Northampton Crisis Intervention &
Appropriate Adults - Northampton
Coventry Life Long links Service Coventry
Coventry Child Exploitation Service Coventry

SOUTH EAST

NORTH WEST

LONDON

Wigan Floating Support - Wigan
Stoke & Staffs Child Exploitation
Services/Missing from home Wirral IDVA
Pan Merseyside Child Exploitation
Service and Missing from home inclusive
of St Helens/Wirral and Knowsley
contracts
Trafford Missing from Care Service
Derby and Derbyshire CARES
NLCBF – National

The Hive - Camden
The Hive - Social Enterprise - Camden
Camden Mediation - Camden
Wandsworth YPH - Wandsworth
Merton - Risk and Resilience Service
- Merton
Merton – Wimbledon Foundation
Health & Wellbeing - Merton

Young Persons Substance Misuse - Surrey
Music to my Ears - Surrey
Hampshire 24/7 Service - Hampshire
YP&F Bespoke - Essex
CHIP - Colchester
Kent SAiFE - Kent
EAST
Suffolk Reparation - Suffolk
Suffolk Mentoring - Suffolk
Norfolk Mediation - Norfolk
Suffolk Positive Futures - Suffolk

LAST YEAR
OVER 9000 PEOPLE
ENGAGED
96% OF SERVICE
USERS FEEL SAFER
AFTER USING OUR
SERVICES

95% REPORTED
IMPROVED MENTAL
HEALTH
98% SERVICE USER
SATISFACTION
100% COMMISSIONER
SATISFACTION
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RISK AND RESILIENCE
In May we launched our Risk and Resilience model –
the approach that underpins our work with children and
young people who are at risk of, or subject to, criminal or
sexual exploitation (including County Lines), or who go missing.
Support to prevent missing from home or care episodes from
recurring includes return home interviews, CE screening and
assessment, followed by programmes of direct work which enable young people to reflect upon and recognise the
causes, signs and symptoms of CE. Our key workers build holistic trusting relationships through individual and
therapeutic support, group activities, and signposting to other services.
Our model rests on
5 key principles:

•
•

Identifying CYP at Risk
Awareness and skills

•
•

Volunteers
Bespoke Case
Management System

•

Flexible and
responsive to need
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INCLUSION 22
Inclusion22 is a dedicated service for children of drug and alcohol using parents and carers. Its aims are to:
•
•
•
•

reduce the risks and negative social and health impacts for children of substance misusing parents
support young people to develop an understanding of the impact of parental substance misuse
safeguard children of substance misusing parents
break inter-generational substance misuse

The Inclusion22 project began as a pilot project as part of the wider Hampshire 24/7 substance misuse
treatment service provided in Hampshire by Catch22, in partnership with Inclusion.

“I’M SO GRATEFUL AND THANKFUL FOR YOUR HELP. MY
DAUGHTER HAS BECOME A CONFIDENT YOUNG LADY,
SHE HAS LEARNT MANY SKILLS; EYE CONTACT WITH
PEOPLE, EXPRESSING WHAT SHE REALLY FEELS AND
NOT WHAT SHE THINKS PEOPLE EXPECT. INCLUSION22
HAS WORKED BRILLIANTLY WITH MY DAUGHTER AND
ME. THEY HAVE MADE A BIG DIFFERENCE TO OUR LIVES,
THEY ARE VERY SPECIAL PEOPLE”
Mother of ‘B’
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EDUCATION
“THIS YEAR, CATCH22 EDUCATION’S SCHOOLS HAVE
CONTINUED TO THRIVE IN KEY AREAS OF PERSONAL
DEVELOPMENT, SHARING EXPERIENCE AND BEST PRACTICE
ALONG THE WAY. OUR TRAUMA INFORMED SCHOOLS HAVE
FOCUSSED ON ENHANCING THEIR THERAPEUTIC OFFER,
WITH IN-SCHOOL INTEGRATIVE THERAPISTS AND MENTAL
HEALTH LEADERS PROVIDING STRONG PASTORAL SUPPORT
TO STUDENTS DURING WHAT HAS, FOR MANY, BEEN A
DIFFICULT YEAR. PROGRESS HAS ALSO BEEN MADE WITH OUR
INVOLVEMENT IN THE BEHAVIOUR HUBS PROGRAMME, BASED
ON A THERAPEUTIC AND TRAUMA INFORMED MODEL OF
POSITIVE REINFORCEMENT WHICH FOCUSES ON DEVELOPING
SELF-MANAGEMENT AND EMOTIONAL REGULATION.
OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS INCLUDE ALL SCHOOLS BEING
ACCREDITED WITH THE MATRIX STANDARD FOR INFORMATION,
ADVICE AND GUIDANCE (IAG) SERVICES AND SCHOOLS’
PARTICIPATION IN THE UNICEF RIGHTS RESPECTING
SCHOOLS INITIATIVE AND DELIVERY OF A RIGHTS RESPECTING
CURRICULUM, FOR WHICH THE FEN RIVERS ACADEMY HAS
BEEN AWARDED ITS SILVER ACCREDITATION. THE FEN RIVERS
ACADEMY ALSO ACHIEVED ITS NATIONAL ONLINE SAFETY
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CERTIFIED SCHOOL STATUS IN RECOGNITION OF ITS
COMMITMENT TO ONLINE SAFETY.
WE’VE FELT THE RECRUITMENT PRESSURES THAT OTHERS
IN THE SECTOR HAVE EXPERIENCED, COUPLED WITH LEGACY
CHALLENGES FROM THE PANDEMIC. WE CONTINUE TO
PRIORITISE THE PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF OUR
DEDICATED STAFF, HIGH QUALITY TEACHING IN ALL OUR
CLASSROOMS AND MEETING THE SAFETY AND WELLBEING
NEEDS OF OUR PUPILS AND SCHOOL COMMUNITIES.
WITH 82% ACHIEVEMENT AT GCSE AND THE VAST MAJORITY OF
SCHOOL LEAVERS TRANSITIONING TO FURTHER EDUCATION,
EMPLOYMENT OR TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES, THE EDUCATION
HUB CONTINUES TO DRIVE FORWARD ITS MISSION – ENABLING
YOUNG PEOPLE TO ACHIEVE MEANINGFUL
QUALIFICATIONS AND PROGRESS AND SUCCEED
IN POSITIVE DESTINATIONS.”
JANE REED,
Education CEO

MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
The Ashwood Academy - Basingstoke
The Austen Academy - Basingstoke
The Brunel Academy - Paignton
The Burton Academy - Torquay
The Coppice Spring Academy - Basingstoke
The Everitt Academy - Lowestoft
The Fen Rivers Academy - King’s Lynn
The Spires Academy - Northampton

INDEPENDENT
Norfolk - Norwich
PPP - Ladbrook Grove,
West London
Suffolk - Ipswich
Oxford - Oxford
Wales- Newport
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LAST YEAR ACROSS OUR INDEPENDENT
AND MAT SCHOOLS
726 PUPILS
TAUGHT
82% OF GCSE
ENTRIES WERE
ACHIEVED

4 SCHOOLS SAW
100% OF THEIR LEAVERS
PROGRESS INTO
POSITIVE DESTINATIONS
(82% ACROSS ALL OUR
SCHOOLS)

THE AUSTEN ACADEMY
Opened in April 2021, The Austen Academy is a Special Educational Needs (SEN) school for learners from Year 1 to
Year 11 whose needs cannot be met within a mainstream environment. All students will have an Education, Health
and Care Plan (EHCP) in relation to their Social, Communication Needs (SCN) associated with a diagnosis of Autism.
Housed in a purpose built two-storey building with specialist classrooms and extensive external grounds, the
Academy will grow to offer spaces for up to 128 full time pupils with personalised academic and therapeutic
programmes to help them progress in life.
The high-quality and professional team of staff help
children and young people build the skills, confidence
and the emotional resilience they need to manage their
everyday lives. The staff also help them develop the
language and communication abilities necessary to
engage positively in the community and eventually to
live an independent life through employment and further
education.
Watch this ITV Meridian feature on The Austen Academy

“IT HAS BEEN A CHALLENGING COUPLE OF YEARS FOR
EVERYONE, OUR STUDENTS INCLUDED. WE ARE THRILLED
TO WELCOME THEM AND OUR COMMUNITY TO A SCHOOL
WHICH IS THE FIRST IN THE AREA SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED TO
IMPROVE THE FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES OF CHILDREN WITH
AUTISM. OUR STUDENTS ARE DOING EXCEPTIONALLY WELL.”
Liz Cooper, Headteacher, The Austen Academy
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INCLUDE WALES
100% OF ALL LEAVERS SUSTAINED THEIR POSITIVE
DESTINATION UP TO 12 MONTHS AFTER LEAVING
Catch22 Include Wales, which is an Estyn registered Independent School. The school provides full-time,
alternative education for Key Stage 1 and 2 students, most of whom have Social, Emotional, and/or Mental
Health Needs (SEMH). Pupils attend the school for assessment, social nurture and academic intervention,
before being supported back into appropriate mainstream or specialist schooling.
Catch22 Include Wales was inspected by Estyn in November 2021. The annual monitoring visit was very positive,
with the report noting how staff have worked together to enable the school to remain open, keep pupils safe and
support their well-being and learning. The inspection team saw that our pupils engage well, display enthusiasm
during tasks and are eager to demonstrate their ability. Catch22 Include Wales were also mentioned in the ESTYN
Annual Report regarding the extended pastoral care offered in the face of the pandemic.

“I’M VERY PROUD OF THE PROGRESS THAT HAS BEEN MADE
AT INCLUDE WALES. IT IS CREDIT TO THE HARD WORK AND
ENTHUSIASM OF OUR STAFF AND STUDENTS THAT ESTYN
HAVE ACKNOWLEDGED OUR STRENGTHS AND SUCCESSES.”
Gemma Wall, Headteacher, Include Wales
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EMPLOYABILITY
AND SKILLS
“THIS YEAR WE’VE SUPPORTED MORE THAN 11,000 PEOPLE TO BETTER
PREPARE THEMSELVES FOR THE WORLD OF WORK – AND REMAINED
COMMITTED TO OUR APPROACH OF HELPING PEOPLE SECURE NOT
JUST ANY JOB, BUT A GOOD JOB. THANKS TO OUR FANTASTIC PARTNERS
AND DEDICATED STAFF, WE’RE DELIVERING PROGRAMMES THAT ARE
EQUIPPING PEOPLE WITH THE SKILLS NEEDED FOR GROWTH SECTORS;
DIGITAL AND TECH, GREEN JOBS AND HOSPITALITY.
“WE HAVE EMBRACED THE KICKSTART PROGRAMME, DELIVERING HIGH
QUALITY PLACEMENTS THROUGH OUR KICKSTART COMMUNITY AND
LATTERLY YEAR OF SERVICE. OUR NCS PROGRAMMES CONTINUE TO
THRIVE AND WE’RE EXCITED TO BE BUILDING CLOSER LINKS BETWEEN
OUR COLLEGE STUDENTS AND EMPLOYABILITY PROGRAMMES THROUGH A
NEW PARTNERSHIP IN THE COMING YEAR.”
Victoria Head, Director, Employability and Skills

COLLEGES

NCS

Bishop Auckland
Great Yarmouth
Kent Maidstone
Nottingham
Peterlee
Southend
Thetford

North East: Durham
County, Newcastle, North
Tyneside
West
Midlands: Herefordshire,
Shropshire, Telford and
Wrekin, Wolverhampton,
Worcestershire
North West: Cheshire East
EMPLOYABILITY
(Macclesfield), Liverpool,
Manchester, Oldham,
Barclays LifeSkills
Sefton, Stockport,
(London, Liverpool and
Tameside, Wirral
Manchester)
South East: Bracknell
Bright Light (London)
[Employability,
Colleges
Forest, East
Sussex, and NCS
Digital Edge (London and
Hampshire, West
Manchester)
Berkshire, Windsor and
Social Switch (London)
Maidenhead, Wokingham
Inspiring Connections (London)
East Midlands: Bakewell,
Digital Leap
Belper, Buxton,
JP Morgan
Chesterfield, Glossop,
Inspiring Families
Ilkeston, Kettering,
Family Works
Wellingborough
JETs
South West: Bath and
Bristol

map]
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LAST YEAR IN EMPLOYABILITY…
11,000 PEOPLE
SUPPORTED
THROUGH OUR
PROGRAMMES
BRIGHT LIGHT
WINS THE CARE
LEAVERS CATEGORY IN
THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE AWARDS 2021

JETS WINS ERSA
‘HIDDEN HEROES’ TEAM
OF THE YEAR AWARD
NEW PARTNERS
INCLUDING JP MORGAN
& CHASE, SALESFORCE

Watch this video of Lauren who has
secured a job following her participation
on our Digital Edge Programme

CATCH22 DIGITAL
Catch22 Digital provides a series of pre-employment and
apprenticeship programmes designed to provide opportunities
for people from excluded groups to get working in digital or
tech enabled roles.
Digital Edge (funded by Microsoft) and Digital Leap (funded by
Salesforce) have collectively seen 190 participants complete
the programmes, resulting in 85 job starts in the last year.

22

HORIZONS
Launched in early 20201, Horizons was set up to initially help 400 people
who face barriers to work into jobs and training. Supported by JP Morgan,
and most recently Rothschild Foundation, the programme is one of the first
programmes to address both unemployment and underemployment; where
work is either low paid, unstable or without opportunities to progress.
Participants received:
•
•
•
•
•

Support from Career Advisors
Group pre-employability support
Volunteer-supported inspiration sessions
A menu of technical training options
In-work support: Participants will receive up to 6 months in-work support
from the Catch22 team.

The programme also provides access to laptops and connectivity support
for young people where digital exclusion presents a barrier.

JOBS 22
Jobs 22 - the new joint venture created by Catch22 and Australian provider of
human service and skills, Angus Knight – was awarded a major contract as part of
the Department for Work and Pensions’ Restart Programme. The contract is for 4.5
years from July 2021, with the aim of securing jobs for around 40,000 people and is
worth more than £200m.
Jobs 22 is providing employability support for job seekers in East Central England – covering the East Midlands,
Lincolnshire, Bedfordshire, Luton and Stoke and Staffordshire.
Take a look at the Jobs 22 customer journey
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NCS
LAST YEAR IN NCS…
87% OF PARTICIPANTS
COMPLETED THE
PROGRAMME

£66,998 RAISED
OVER THE SUMMER FOR
LOCAL GOOD CAUSES

Designed for 16-17 year olds, NCS is a youth programme that runs every summer and autumn, during school
holidays. The experience is all about emboldening young people, by giving them the buzz of being an adult
(without all the responsibilities). As a national youth programme, over 150 partner organisations come together
to form the NCS network.
Catch22 has worked with NCS since 2010, delivering the life-changing experience for young people in these
regions: North East, North West, West Midlands, East Midlands, South East, South West
As well as the NCS programmes, Catch22 has been in schools delivering 15 hours of personal development
workshops on for more than 700 pupils on topics including:
•
•
•

Health & Wellbeing
Post-COVID Socialisation
Preparing to return to

•
•

education
Career Progression
Employability

•
•
•

Skills for Independent Living
British Values & Citizenship
Volunteering & Social Action
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COLLEGES
LAST YEAR
446 LEARNERS
777 AIMS WERE
ACHIEVED, INCLUDING
QUALIFICATIONS AND
WORK EXPERIENCE
PLACEMENTS

81% OF OUR YOUNG
PEOPLE PROGRESSED
INTO A POSITIVE
DESTINATION
STUDY PROGRAMME
RATED GOOD BY OFSTED
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Listen to Bonnie who attends our College in Peterlee, talking about her experience at Catch22.
We run 7 colleges for learners
aged 16-19 which are
focussed on the education
and employment goals of our
individual learners.
We work with students to develop
a tailored learning programme
which is matched to their interests
and goals for the future. Students
can pick from a range of learning
options covering five key areas:
1. Functional skills 2. Vocational
qualification 3. Life skills 4. Work
experience 5. Progression Our
learners have enjoyed courses
on life skills and wellbeing,
employability skills, IT skills,
construction, land-based studies,
hair and beauty, hospitality and
catering – as well as English and
Maths functional skills.

"CATCH 22 HAS IMPROVED MY CONFIDENCE
AND I CAN NOW GET THE GRADES THAT I WANT."
Shayla Gordon, Student

"THEY'VE HELPED ME PASS MY GCSE MATHS AND ILL SOON
GET MY ENGLISH AS WELL. SINCE BEING HERE, MY ATTITUDE
TOWARDS LEARNING HAS ALSO CHANGED DRASTICALLY."
Billy Rutterford, Student

"CATCH 22 IS A GREAT PLACE TO BE. TEACHERS GIVE ADVICE
AND HELP STUDENTS REACH WHAT THEY WANT TO ACHIEVE
IN THEIR LIVES."
Malgorzata Lipinska, Student
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APPRENTICESHIPS
“WHEN I SAT DOWN TO WRITE MY REVIEW OF 2020, WE WERE
STILL IN THE MIDST OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, AND WHILST
THE RECOVERY IS STILL ONGOING AND FOR MANY, STILL IN THE
EARLY STAGES, THERE HAVE BEEN SOME DEFINITE GREEN
SHOOTS THAT SHOULD BE CELEBRATED.
THE LAUNCH AND SUCCESS OF STEP22 – HELPING PEOPLE TO
FORGE A CAREER WITHIN THE HOSPITALITY SECTOR AND AIDING
THE SECTOR SPRING BACK FROM THE PANDEMIC AND RECRUIT
GREAT PEOPLE HAS BEEN A REAL HIGHLIGHT FOR ME.
WE LAUNCHED OUR TRAINEESHIP PROVISION, DELIVERING
POSITIVE OUTCOMES TO A NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE IN LONDON.
AND THE QUALITY OF OUR APPRENTICESHIP PROVISION
IMPROVED, DELIVERING FANTASTIC TRAINING TO OUR
APPRENTICES ACROSS THE HOSPITALITY, HOUSING AND
BUSINESS SERVICES SECTORS.
THE LAST 12 MONTHS HAVE MOST CERTAINLY
BEEN A PERIOD OF BOTH RECOVERY AND
GROWTH.”
CHRIS STOKER-JONES,
Director of Vocational Training
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LAST YEAR
OUR APPRENTICESHIP
AND COLLEGE PROVISION
WAS RATED GOOD BY
OFSTED
67% OF APPRENTICES
REPORT THAT THEY HAVE
RECEIVED A PAY RISE AS
A RESULT OF ACHIEVING
THEIR APPRENTICESHIP
61% OF OUR
APPRENTICES ACHIEVE
A DISTINCTION GRADE
IN THEIR END POINT
ASSESSMENT

ATTENDANCE AT
TUTORIALS HAVE
INCREASED FROM 39%
TO 98% SINCE THE NEW
BLENDED APPROACH WAS
IMPLEMENTED
77% OF OUR TRAINEESHIP
STUDENTS PROGRESSED
TO A POSITIVE
DESTINATION OF
EMPLOYMENT, FE OR
APPRENTICESHIPS
97% OF NEW EMPLOYERS
ENGAGED WITH IN 2021
ARE NEW TO USING
APPRENTICES

HYBRID DELIVERY
94% REPORTED THAT THE NEW BLENDED DELIVERY
MODEL IS MORE SUITED TO THEIR BUSINESS NEEDS.
Following on from a transition to a fully digital delivery model during lockdowns, over the last year the
apprenticeship team have been able to physically visit our apprentices - spending time with them and their
employers delivering some face-to-face training as we moved to a blended delivery model.
This new approach to our teaching and training is being very well received by both our apprentices and our employers.
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STEP 22
During National Apprenticeships Week
2021, we launched Step22 - our hospitality
apprenticeship brand. Set up to support
the sector recover from the fallout
of the pandemic as well as Brexit, it
provides the highest quality of hospitality
apprenticeships available on the market.
Now with four programmes (and a fifth
in development) that cover all aspects of
roles within the hospitality sector, Step22
is able to provide a service across the vast
majority of hospitality businesses and
the take up has been phenomenal. From a
standing start, the team has seen growth
ahead of budget and employers are already
feeling the positive impact of recruiting an
apprentice into their team.

PROPERTY
In our Property division, the team continues to go from strength to strength, and our newest
apprenticeship programme, Junior Estate Agent Level 2, is proving to be incredibly popular
with independent estate agencies as they look to cope with the demands of their sector.
In fact, this programme has seen the highest increase of new apprentices under 24 in our
entire provision.

TRAINEESHIPS
We also created our first Traineeship programme to support 16–18-year-olds to access
hospitality jobs in London. Working in collaboration with Compass Group and Hej Coffee, our
first cohort embarked upon a Barista focused programme and the success was startling,
with the vast majority progressing to a positive destination. This year we will be offering
further hospitality traineeships but also a Music Production course based out of our Links
Studio at Community Links in Canning Town.
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COMMUNITY LINKS
“WE ARE IMMENSELY PROUD OF THE REAL IMPACT
COMMUNITY LINKS HAS HAD IN NEWHAM AND BEYOND
OVER THE LAST 12 MONTHS. FACED WITH ONE OF THE MOST
CHALLENGING ENVIRONMENTS IN RECENTLY HISTORY
OUR RESPONSE HAS BEEN IMMEDIATE, EXTENSIVE, AND
SUSTAINED. ALL THIS HARD WORK HAS ONLY BEEN POSSIBLE
THROUGH THE GOODWILL AND GENEROSITY OF OUR MANY
FUNDERS AND SUPPORTERS FROM ACROSS THE COUNTRY.
PUT SIMPLY, NONE OF OUR ACHIEVEMENTS WOULD HAVE
BEEN POSSIBLE WITHOUT YOU - SO THANK YOU SINCERELY.”
Chi Kavindele, Director, Community Links

ADVICE TEAM SUPPORTED
A TOTAL OF 3,841 PEOPLE.

HEALTH TEAM INTERACT
WITH 79,621 PEOPLE

COVID-19 HELPLINE SUPPORTED MORE THAN 12,000
NEWHAM RESIDENTS
In February 2021, Community Links merged with Catch22. The two organisations have shared back office and
corporate services since early 2017 when Community Links joined the Catch22 Group. The merger is the next
step in their relationship, after both boards decided to strengthen the partnership and merge fully.
Benefits of the merger will be recognised in three broad areas: Sustainability, Scope and Scale. Although not solely
about cost saving, it will come as no surprise that the Covid-19 pandemic has accelerated the speed of integration
given pressure on existing funds and the increased need for Community Links’ work – demand for some services
over summer 2020 increased by up to 400%. Community Link’s name, branding and logo established over 40 years
ago will continue, as will its commitment to the community in Newham and East London.

LINKS STUDIOS
In August 2021, Links Studios - a recording studio for young people aged 11- 19 who are based in the
Newham community – was launched. The studio was formally opened by Ronnie Wood from the Rolling
Stones, and we were joined by many familiar faces at the launch event, which felt even more poignant after
18 months of not being able to spend time together in person. Young people will have access to song writing
workshops, music production courses, video and photography workshops, sound engineering workshops, and
courses to develop social media skills. Alongside this, Links Studios is supporting young people to move into
sustainable creative and digital employment pathways.
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DRIVING CHANGE
REFORM AGENDA
Catch22 has an ambitious reform
agenda. We want to reform the
youth employment system in order
to level the playing field for every
young person out of work. Our aim is
to tackle both youth unemployment
and underemployment (where work
is insecure, short term or low paid).
View this animation

ONLINE HARMS
In 2021 we launched our major
research report entitled: Children
and Young Peoples’ Experiences of
Online Harms: ‘Acceptable Use’ and
Regulation, thanks to funding from
the Mayor of London’s Violence
Reduction Unit.
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DIGITAL EXCLUSION
In June we launched our Vision for a Digitally Included Britain in the attempt to end digital poverty and achieve
100% digital inclusion by 2030, by ensuring:
•
•
•
•
•

Everyone is able to access appropriate devices that allow them to connect to the internet,
Everyone has easy access to high speed, quality, broadband,
Every school-aged child is given, or has access to a personal, age-appropriate device, data and skills
package upon starting school,
Basic digital skills training is available to everyone, regardless of age, through local community hubs, and
Everyone has access to the information they need to stay safe online.

Through our partnership with Nominet, we’re looking at the barriers to digital skills that many young people
face. Through this year we’ll be producing a series of research papers and making recommendations on what
needs to happen to create a truly digitally included nation.

OUR PARTNERS
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVER THE
YEAR WAS STRONG, DESPITE THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
THAT IMPACTED THE WHOLE OF THIS FINANCIAL YEAR.
THE CONTINUED SUPPORT OF OUR COMMISSIONERS
AND FUNDERS, TOGETHER WITH THE FLEXIBLE AND
INNOVATIVE APPROACHES OF OUR STAFF ENABLED
US TO CONTINUE TO DELIVER QUALITY SERVICES TO
MEET THE NEEDS OF OUR BENEFICIARIES. WE WERE
ALSO ABLE TO MAINTAIN STRONG CONTROL OVER OUR
OPERATING COSTS, WHILST CONTINUING TO INVEST IN
THE ORGANISATION, AND GENERATE A STRONG INCOME
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR.
We are grateful for the support provided by the
National Lottery Communities Fund to both the
organisation and our beneficiaries in response to the
Covid-19 pandemic.
In addition, the value of our investment portfolio
recovered significantly, following last years falls
triggered by the outbreak of the pandemic, which
combined with our operating surplus had led to a
significant increase in the group’s unrestricted reserves.
During the year Community Links Trust, an existing
charity within the group, merged with Catch22. The
aims of the merger were to secure the sustainability
of Community Links’ work in Newham and Greater
London and to provide a platform for this work to grow
in both scope and scale along with providing some
overall cost efficiencies.

Also, during the year Ripplez CIC merged with Catch22.
Ripplez delivered a range of evidence-based early
intervention and intensive home visiting services in the
East Midlands, Catch22 aim to continue with this work
and will seek to expand it into other geographies.
Our partnership work with corporate funders continued
to expand with new funding partnerships secured with
Salesforce, J.P. Morgan, and National Grid amongst
others. This is a funding area we aim to continue to
grow as this type of funding allow us the flexibility to
innovate and deliver on our reform agenda.
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Our Justice ‘through-the-gate’ contracts ended in June
2021, but we successfully secured 9 contracts, mainly
in London and the South West of England, to provide
‘personal wellbeing’ support for prisoner leavers on
licence and those serving community sentences.
The group is well positioned financially for 2021/22
and beyond, with resources available for the
organisation to grow into new geographies and new
areas of support whilst investing in the organisations
infrastructure to improve efficiency and providing
some shelter from the economic headwinds and the
ever-increasing needs of our service users.
The group’s financial performance for the year to 31
August 2021 is set out in the Statement of Financial
Activities.
Movements in the Restricted Pension Funds and
Restricted Fixed Asset Funds relate to the operations
of the Catch22 Multi Academies Trust (MAT) and in
particular the establishment of new academies. The
underlying financial performance of the group is
therefore better represented by the movements on
Restricted Funds, decrease of £0.4m (2020: decrease
of £0.1m) and Unrestricted Funds, increase of £2.4m
(2020: decrease of £0.3m).
The increase in Unrestricted Funds is after net
exceptional items expenditure of £0.6m (2020:
income of £0.9m), relating to the clawback of funds
due to non-delivery by a subcontractor, the costs
of organisational restructures, the impairment of
tangible fixed assets, and the loss on disposal of Only
Connect UK from the group.
Overall, the group’s consolidated balance sheet has
strengthened further during the year, with Restricted
Reserves of £4.0m (2020: £4.4m) and Unrestricted
Reserves of £11.7m
(2020: £9.3m). These reserves provide a solid base for
the future of the organisation and the trustees have
chosen to invest some of the Unrestricted Reserves
to improve the group’s systems, better demonstrate
its impact, strengthen its project governance, and
grow its voluntary income from corporate funders.
The strong balance sheet will also help to shelter
the group from the impact of the current inflationary
pressure being experienced within the economy.
As a result of the group’s strong financial performance
and its focus on partnership income, which tends to
be paid in advance of delivery, the cash position has
improved significantly with the bank overdraft as at 31
August 2021 reduced to £2.0m (2020: £3.75m). Since
the balance sheet date this has been fully repaid.
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The diverse nature of the group’s income streams
allows it to take a ‘balanced portfolio’ approach, with
some services contributing a greater amount to the
cost of support services than others. However, we
continually review the financial viability of all our
services, paying particular attention to those that
consume a disproportionate amount of resources
from our support services or require significant
additional support maintain or improve quality. Where
it is not financially viable for the group to continue to
deliver services, we are proactive in taking measures
to restructure them to ensure their future viability, or
reluctantly close them where necessary.

We aim to continue to growth the organisation as
we believe that scale offers financial protection for
the organisation and allows us to continue to offer
a platform to social entrepreneurs and smaller
organisations to develop their ideas and secure their
future impact. We think there are particular growth
opportunities for the organisation in its Justice work,
the expansion of its children’s home offer (first home
opened in early 2022) and corporate partnerships. We
will also seek to maintain the diversity of the group’s
income streams as this also offers financial protection
to the organisation and helps secure its long-term
sustainability to continue to deliver impact for its
service users and deliver reform of public services.

INCOME
Total income for the year
to 31 August 2021 was

£65.2m
£53.2m
compared with

for the previous year.

Voluntary income in
the period included

£17.9m

(2020: £6.5m) of long leasehold land and
buildings transferred from local authorities
used by new academies in the Catch22 Multi
Academies Trust.

After adjusting for these ‘one-off’ income amounts, income for the year is

£47.3m, compared to £46.7m in the previous year.

Donations, legacies, and grants were 12% of income excluding ‘one-offs’ (2020: 7%).
This is the result our successful strategy to increase voluntary income from corporate
funders and we are grateful for the support of continuing and new funders including
Barclays Bank pls, The Clothworkers’ Foundation, Salesforce, J.P. Morgan, The
National Lottery Community Fund, Microsoft, and National Grid amongst others.
Income from charitable activities fell to £40.9m (2020: £42.5m). This was the result of a
combination of contracts coming to an end and not being renewed, decisions that were taken
to close unviable services last year, and the disposal of Only Connect UK from the group.
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EXPENDITURE
TOTAL EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR THE YEAR TO 31
AUGUST 2021 WAS £54.7M, COMPARED WITH £46.7M
FOR THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR. INCLUDED
WITHIN THE COST OF CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES ARE
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, WHICH ARE EXPLAINED ABOVE,
AND THE IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LEASEHOLD LAND AND
BUILDINGS HELD BY THE MAT £7.4M (2020: £NIL).
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Support costs

Investments

Support costs reduced by 6% during the year to
£4.4m (2020: £4.7m).

All investments were acquired within the Trustees’
powers. The portfolio is held in general funds and is
managed in accordance with an Investment Policy,
which sets out the objectives of the fund, considers
risk and liquidity requirements and sets out how
the fund should be managed including the Board’s
expectations around ethical investment. The objective
of the general fund is to provide a regular flow of
income to support the daily activity of Catch22 and
in addition, to achieve a level of capital growth which
will preserve the real value of the fund over time and
provide a capital fund for investment in approved
development projects within Catch22.

We constantly review our support services to ensure
they are operating efficiently and effectively and
meeting the needs of our services. During the year
we were supported by Bain & Company, through our
relationship with the Social Business Trust (SBT)
to review both our financial and human resources
systems and processes. Following this work, we
have implemented some changes in our structures
and improvements in our processes and, with the
continued, support of SBT we will be implementing
a new finance system during the next financial year
which is expected to go-live in September 2022.

Surplus on investment assets
The net gain on investments during the year was
£1.3m (2020: loss £0.5m) and at 31 August 2021, after
withdrawals, the portfolio was valued at £11.5m (31
August 2020: £10.5m), in addition, income earned
from the portfolio was £0.3m (2020: £0.3m).
This is a strong recovery following the impact of the
pandemic. Since the balance sheet date, the trustees
have chosen to take an increased ethical approach to the
investments, with a particular focus on sustainability.
HSBC Private Bank, the investment managers, offer
a working capital facility (currently with an agreed
limit of £5.0m) secured against the portfolio at a very
competitive interest rate. The trustees regularly consider
the cost of borrowing to finance working capital against
expected investment returns in order to decide whether
investments should be sold to fund working capital
requirements. The trustees’ current opinion is that
market returns are likely to exceed the cost of borrowing
for the foreseeable future and therefore investments
should not be sold. At 31 August 2021 £2.0m of this
facility has been drawn (2020: £3.75m).

Our investment portfolio is managed by a firm of
professional investment managers. The Trustees
consider the performance of those managers and the
investment portfolios they manage to be satisfactory
and that our underlying investments are sound.
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Reserves
The Finance Growth and External Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board of Trustees, conducts an annual
review of the level of unrestricted reserves in the
general fund by considering risks associated with
the various income streams, expenditure plans and
balance sheet items.
The level of Free Reserves that should be maintained
by the organisation is determined by balancing two
competing objectives. On the one hand ensuring
we have maximum and speedy use of resources to
deliver real impact for beneficiaries and realise our
reform ambitions and, on the other hand, ensuring we
have adequate resources to continue to deliver our
services through periods of financial challenge and
uncertainty and can be here for our beneficiaries over
the medium and long term.
The trustees assess the risks that the charity is
exposed to on a regular basis and determine a
range for Free Reserves considering these risks. The
principle risks include:
• an unexpected change in the level of our income;
• the need to maintain services over the short term
if funding streams reduce;
• the likelihood of unexpected expenditure; and
• working capital requirements.
In determining the figures trustees also consider future
plans for the group and the need to protect vulnerable
beneficiaries, staff and volunteers in the unlikely event
of unplanned closure of some of its services.

Whilst this process cannot come up with a precise
figure for Free Reserves, after taking these factors
into consideration the trustees believe that the
appropriate level for Free Reserves is between £2.35m
and £3.6m for the group.
Free Reserves are those that are freely available at
the trustees’ discretion to help manage financial
variability i.e. Unrestricted Reserves excluding fixed
assets and bank borrowing secured against those
fixed assets.
At 31 August 2021 the group’s total reserves
amounted to £48.7m (2020: £37.4m) of which
£37.0m was restricted (2020: £28.0m) and £11.7m
was unrestricted (2020: £9.3m). Of the unrestricted
amount £5.95m (2020: £3.9m) is deemed to be free
reserves. This is above the range set by the trustees
and since the balance sheet date the trustees have
agreed to invest £0.7m in the organisation to ensure
its continued and enhanced success in improving
the lives of its beneficiaries. The trustees consider
it prudent, given the current inflationary pressure in
the economy, and the potential impact of the cost-ofliving crisis on the group’s staff and beneficiaries to
hold free reserves more than the current maximum
amount set out under the reserves policy.
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FINANCIAL
RISKS
LIQUIDITY
RISK

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between cash balances and
long-term investments. The Group’s policy on liquidity risk is to ensure there
are sufficient cash balances to meet the day-to-day needs of the organisation
while investing surplus balances in fixed asset investments.

MARKET
RISK

The Group’s exposure to market risk arises primarily from the Group’s fixed
asset investments. The Group’s policy is to utilise the services of professional
investment managers to manage the fixed asset investments. Performance of
these investments and therefore the investment managers is reviewed every
month by the senior management team. The Finance, Growth and External
Audit Committee have been appointed by the Board to oversee the performance
of our investment managers.

CREDIT
RISK

FOREIGN
EXCHANGE
RISK
OTHER
RISK

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk in relation to money due from
commissioners in relation to its delivery of services. The vast majority of these
commissioners have proved to be extremely credit worthy. Nevertheless, we
operate a proactive credit control system designed to ensure payment is received
quickly and that problems are identified as early as possible, and the appropriate
action is taken. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

The impact of increasing inflation has been considered on the charity’s future
plans and budgeting processes, and the potential impact of this coupled with
restrictions on future government spending, will continue to be a risk into the
August 2022 year end and beyond.
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STRUCTURE,
GOVERNANCE
AND
MANAGEMENT
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Formation and structure of the Charity
Catch22 was incorporated as a Company Limited by
Guarantee on 28 April 2008. It was registered as a
charity on 19 May 2008.
Its objectives, as stated in its memorandum of
association, are: ‘to promote opportunities for the
development, education and support of young people
in need to lead purposeful, stable and fulfilled lives
and to promote safer, crime free communities for the
benefit of the public.’
We have considered the Charity Commission’s guidance
on public benefit, including the guidance ‘Public benefit:
running a charity (PB2). In particular, the Trustees
consider how planned activities will contribute to the
aims and objectives they have set, taking account of the
available guidance on public benefit.
The trustees are satisfied that Catch22 has aims
and objectives and carries out activities that are for
the public benefit in that the support provided to
individuals, families and communities directly benefits
each of those groups and therefore the wider public.
Catch22 is the sole trustee of The Royal Philanthropic
Society incorporating the Rainer Foundation and
is the sole member of The Crime Concern Trust
Limited. Both are charities. The Rainer Foundation
has released its permanent endowment and is now
dormant. Crime Concern is also now dormant.

Catch22 holds 100% of the share
capital of Catch22 Social Enterprise Limited
Catch22 owns 100% of Pupil Parent Partnership
Limited, a company limited by guarantee.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Catch22 Social
Enterprise Solutions Limited.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Include, a company
limited by guarantee.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Catch22 Multi Academies
Trust Limited, a company limited by guarantee.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Community Links Trust
Limited, a company limited by guarantee.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Community Links
Trading Limited.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Launch22 Limited, a
company limited by guarantee.
Catch22 also owns 100% of Ripplez CIC, a company
limited by guarantee – ownership acquired 1
January 2021
Please see note 12 for disclosure of activities and
performance of each subsidiary.
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GOVERNANCE
Safeguarding

Modern Slavery

Catch22 is a diverse and dispersed organisation,
supporting some very vulnerable service users. We
have a dedicated post within the organisation to
ensure that we appropriately manage risk and drive
improvements in our practice across our various
delivery arms particularly education and social care.
This post of Safeguarding Manager has been in place
since January 2018 and is focussed on continuous
improvement to our safeguarding practice.

Catch22 has a zero-tolerance approach to modern
slavery, and we are committed to acting ethically
and with integrity in all our business dealings and
relationships and to implementing and enforcing
effective systems and controls to endeavour to ensure
that modern slavery is not taking place anywhere in
our own business or in any of our supply chains.

Over this financial year, there were various
safeguarding incidents, as we would expect given the
nature of our work, primarily made up of disclosures
made by the vulnerable young people and adults that
we work with. Where appropriate these were escalated
to the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO).
We have rolled-out an IT platform for safeguarding
incident reporting and management in our schools to
improve communication and reduce the bureaucratic
burden, both at the point of reporting and in the
administration of the monitoring and follow up
actions so that more resources can be focussed on
keeping our service users safe.

We are also committed to ensuring there is transparency
in our own business and in our approach to tackling
modern slavery throughout our supply chains,
consistent with our disclosure obligations under the
Modern Slavery Act 2015. We expect the same high
standards from all of our contractors, suppliers and
other business partners, and as part of our contracting
processes, we include specific prohibitions against the
use of forced, compulsory or trafficked labour, or anyone
held in slavery or servitude, whether adults or children.
We also expect that our suppliers will hold their own
suppliers to the same high standards.

43

Trustee Board and Committees

Governance Structure

The board of trustees are aware of its duty under
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in a way
they consider, in good faith, would be most likely, as
an organisation that exists to deliver public benefit,
to promote the success of the charitable group to
achieve its charitable purposes, and in doing so have
regard (amongst other matters) to:

The Trustee board meets at least four times a year
and has established three committees to which
certain functions are delegated. These are: the
Finance, Growth and External Audit Committee, the
Governance, Risk and Internal Audit Committee and
the People and Performance Committee.

a) the likely consequences of any decision in the
long term,
b) the interests of the company's employees,
c) the need to foster the company's business
relationships with suppliers, customers and
others,
d) the impact of the company's operations on the
community and the environment,
e) the desirability of the company maintaining
a reputation for high standards of business
conduct, and
f) the need to act fairly between members of the
company.
On joining the board of trustees, a new trustees will
be briefed on their duties, which are partly fulfilled
through the governance structure set out below,
including the delegation of day-to-day decision
making the Chief Officer Group.
All trustees embrace our vision to build a strong
society, where everyone has good people around them,
a purpose, and a good place to live and promote our
organisational values to ensure:
•
•
•
•

we are compassionate – we care about people,
supporting them to move forward
we empower others – we give people the
knowledge, skills and opportunities to thrive
we are collaborative – we do things with people,
not to them
we are curious – we explore, innovate and
challenge to improve what we do.

The trustees consider that they have fulfilled
their obligations under Section 172, as evidenced
throughout this report.

Each committee meets at least four times a year and
reports back to the Trustee Board.
The committees monitor progress against goals and
targets that flow from the strategic plan set by the
Trustee board.
Catch22 complies with ‘Good Governance: A Code for
the Voluntary and Community Sector’ issued by the
Governance Code Steering Group.
There is a scheme of delegation in place which sets
out what matters are reserved for the trustee board
and what is delegated to the chief executive and
senior management.
Matters reserved for the board include
(among others):
•
•
•
•

Setting the charity’s strategy;
Approval of the organisational business plan and
annual budget;
Approval of any changes to the group structure;
Appointment of the chief executive

Matters delegated to the chief executive include
(among others):
•
•
•
•

Establishing partnerships and joint working
arrangements;
Development of new services;
Tenders for new contracts
(with a value of up to £2m);
Appointment of the executive management team
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Valuing our Trustees – recruitment,
induction and ongoing training
The People and Performance Committee oversees the
recruitment of Trustees and undertakes a periodic
skills audit of the Board. Applications for Trusteeship
are sought through open advertisement, use of a
specialist agency and personal contacts. Applicants
are assessed against a trustee job description and
shortlisted candidates are interviewed by a panel of
Trustees and appointed by the Trustee Board. Trustees
are normally appointed for three years and may
be reappointed for a further three years subject to
agreement of the Board. A further three-year period
is available if it is considered to be in the best interest
of Board stability.
New Trustees are provided with induction meetings
with key staff and are given a detailed governance
pack. Arrangements are made for Trustees to visit
Catch22’s projects and services. Trustees receive
information newsletters, presentations on aspects
of Catch22’s work and on matters affecting the
voluntary sector.
Catch22 looks to all those involved in its governance
to make a reasonable commitment to ongoing
development and training. This may involve away days,
visits, presentations and other internal functions
as well as opportunities to attend relevant external
events such as seminars, courses and conferences.
Catch22 also circulates publications of general
interest and provides access to magazines, articles,
newsletters, policy briefings and other documents of
more specialist interest.
Setting Pay and Remuneration of
Key Management Personnel
Setting Pay and Remuneration of key management
personnel is the responsibility of the People
and Performance Committee. In setting pay
and remuneration, they consider performance
management information and relevant benchmarks
within the sector.

Engagement with our People
We recognise that our people, both staff and
volunteers, are key to the success of the organisation
and to delivering the impact we seek for our
beneficiaries. We engage with our people through
a variety of channels to keep them informed, seek
their views, encourage their involvement and develop
common awareness. These channels include,
amongst others:
•
•
•
•
•

regular service visits by the Chief Officer Group
and trustees,
a monthly question & answer session with the
Chief Office Group,
an annual staff conference which trustees attend,
a monthly newsletter, supported with information
on our intranet,
an annual staff survey

Information gathered by the senior leadership team
is fed back to trustees via reports submitted to and
discussions held at the People and Performance
Committee.
Business Relationships
We recognise that relationships with business
stakeholders is key to our success and long-term
sustainability. Strong, collaborative relationships with
our commissioners and funders enables us to work
with them during the pandemic to find new ways of
supporting our beneficiaries and to respond to their
changing needs. These relationships are also key to
securing ongoing funding.
We also seek to engage with the wider sector through
professional bodies and interest groups to both seek
and share best practice and collaborate on finding
solutions to shared challenges.
We value all our suppliers and look to identify our key
suppliers and put multiyear contracts in place and
adopt a partnership approach to the relationship
where any concerns are worked through together
to find mutually beneficial solutions. We also have
several small subcontractor organisations who deliver
services on our behalf, and we adopt a supportive
approach to contract management and help them to
build their capacity. For example, we have used our
own internal cyber and information security expertise
to assist some of these organisations to harden their
security environments and achieved certification
where necessary.
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Environment
We recognise the importance of minimising our
impact on the environment and that environmental
issues are a significant concern for both our people
and those we support. We use our school and college
curriculums to promote environmental sustainability
and we also have a ‘Go Green’ working group that
shares ideas to minimise environmental impact. We
actively encourage our staff to use transport options
that result in less CO2 emissions.
We have created a carbon reduction plan with the aim
of achieving Net Zero by 2050. We have established an
Environment cross-cutting initiative task force in our
business plan with chief officer sponsorship. Future
measures we hope to implement are:
•
•
•
•
•

sourcing energy from 1005 renewable sources,
replacing gas boilers in the properties we control
with decarbonised energy systems,
working with landlords of our short leasehold
premises to drive sustainability measures,
reducing our employees use of petrol and diesel
vehicles,
obtaining Net Zero commitments from our supply
chain partners:

Our consumption and emissions for 2020/21 were as
follows:

Energy Type

Consumption

Emissions

Gas

1,772,333 KWh

324.62 tCO2e

743,478 KWh

157.86 tCO2e

Electricity
Vehicles*

120.36 tCO2e

Total Emissions

602.84 tCO2e

Intensity ratio
per £m/turnover **

12.74 tCO2e

*Vehicles includes petrol and diesel purchased plus
employee mileage claims
** Turnover excludes MAT land & buildings
transferred
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TRUSTEES’
RESPONSIBILITIES
The Trustees are responsible for preparing the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Trustees to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the Trustees have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
Under company law the Trustees must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and charity and of the surplus or
deficit of the Group for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees
are required to:
•
•
•

•

•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently
make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements
prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Charity will continue in
operation.
observe the methods and principles in the
Charities SORP.

In so far as the trustees are aware:
•
•

there is no relevant audit information of which the
charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
the trustees have taken all steps that they ought
to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that
the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Charity’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Charity and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Financial statements are published on the Charity’s
website in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements, which may
vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The
maintenance and integrity of the Charity’s website
is the responsibility of the Trustees. The Trustees’
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of
the financial statements contained therein.
Risk management
The Trustees have in place a robust risk management
process. The process identifies the types of risks the
Charity faces, prioritises them in terms of likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact, identifies the
means of managing these risks and monitors how
they are managed. Development and review of the risk
management arrangements are the responsibility of
the Governance, Risk and Internal Audit Committee. The
Chief Officer Group are responsible for managing risk
across the organisation and receive regular updates at
their fortnightly meetings on key risks and they ensure
that collaborative mitigating action is taken.
The internal audit programme is agreed annually with
the Governance, Risk and Internal Audit Committee and
focuses on the key areas of risk within the organisation.
Audit findings and progress on implementing actions is
reported quarterly to the committee.
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The key risks identified by Catch22 at the end of
2021/22, together with the actions taken or intended
to be taken in response to these risks are as follows:
•

•

•

•

Loss of income due to public sector spending cuts
following the pandemic in addition to rising costs
due to inflationary pressure. Catch22’s response
is to continue to focus resources in our business
development and partnerships teams, maintain
our diversified income streams, keep our quality
high in order to secure repeat business and our
costs competitive to ensure that our cost basis is
sustainable over the longer-term. We also continue
to be focussed on securing an increased proportion
of voluntary grant income and developing income
streams from trading activity along with ensuring
our support teams are appropriately structured
and deliver value for money. Financial performance,
future forecasts and our income pipeline is
regularly monitored by the Finance, Growth and
External Audit Committee.
Loss of control of personal or sensitive data.
Mitigated by robust data protection and
information security policies, in line with the
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR),
supported by staff briefings and compulsory
training. We review the risk of a breach of our
IT platforms on an ongoing basis and take
appropriate mitigating action to keep them
secure. We achieved Cyber Essentials Plus
certification in June 2021 and at the end of
2021/22 we were working towards ISO27001:
Information Security Management certification
for our core central processes and infrastructure.
This certification was achieved in April 2022.
Failure to keep our service users safe. Established
policies and procedures with clear training and staff
competency expectations embedded throughout
the organisation, monitored through regular
supervisions and internal audit, overseen by a
Safeguarding Manager. Designated safeguarding
leads appointed in all our services. Our schools and
colleges use a specific safeguarding monitoring
system, and a similar system will be rolled out to our
other services in autumn 2022.
Failure to ensure the wellbeing and safety of
staff, particularly those working with vulnerable
beneficiaries. Our People team continuing to
develop our wellbeing offer and our policy on staff
supervision meetings includes the requirement to
discuss staff welfare. Increased focus on mental
health support within the organisation. We have
a professional health and safety team in post
with embedded health and safety polices and
procedures, underpinned by compulsory training for
managers and regular health and safety inspections
with follow-up of actions. Emphasis on learning
from incidents and near misses and we are in the
process of introducing a new incident management
system to enable us to react more quickly to
incidents, learn lessons and identify trends.

•

•

Serious incident results in adverse publicity
leading to reputational damage. Appropriate
policies and procedure are in place to mitigate
the risk of a serious incident occurring.
Crisis Management policy in place and crisis
management training provided to key staff.
Reactive communication strategy prepared. New
critical incident process introduced.
Lack of organisational capacity to bid for
new work and deliver existing work due to
changing work patterns, increased labour
market opportunities and cost of living crisis.
We have identified mission critical roles across
the organisation, talent strategy and review of
Catch22 employee value proposition underway
along with a new pay strategy being developed.
Delivery capacity and quality continually
monitored through management arrangements
and the internal audit and impact board.
Development capacity boosted when necessary
through the use of the freelance resources.

Further information about Catch2, including our
Social Business Review can be found at:
www.catch-22.org.uk
Signed on behalf of the Board of Trustees on
25 May 2022.

Terry Duddy
Chair, Catch22 Charity Ltd
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AUDITOR’S
REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF CATCH22 CHARITY LIMITED
Opinion						
We have audited the financial statements of Catch
22 Charity Limited (the ‘parent charitable company’)
and its subsidiaries (the ’group’) for the year ended
31 August 2021 which comprise as the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated
and Parent Charitable Company Balance Sheets, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and notes to the
financial statements, including significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s
and the parent charitable company’s affairs as
at 31 August 2021 and of the group’s incoming
resources and application of resources, including
its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion				
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs(UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent
of the charitable company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not
identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the group’s and parent charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
trustees with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Responsibilities of trustees

The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The trustees
are responsible for the other information contained in the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

As explained more fully in the trustees’
responsibilities statement set out on page 46, the
trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees
are responsible for assessing the group and parent
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the trustees either intend to
liquidate the group or parent charitable company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

•

the information given in the strategic report and
the trustees’ annual report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and
• the strategic report and the trustees’ annual
report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.			
					
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of
the group and parent charitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or the trustees’ annual report.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK)
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
•

•
•
•

the parent charitable company has not kept
adequate and sufficient accounting records, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent charitable company’s financial
statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

•

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group and parent charitable
company’s internal control.
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•

•

•

•

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the trustees.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
group and parent charitable company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the group or parent charitable company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit report.
We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Our approach was as follows:
•

•

•

•

We obtained an understanding of the legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the
charitable company and considered that the
most significant are [the Companies Act 2006,
the Charities Act 2011, the Charity SORP, and UK
financial reporting standards as issued by the
Financial Reporting Council]
We obtained an understanding of how the
charitable company complies with these
requirements by discussions with management
and those charged with governance.
We assessed the risk of material misstatement
of the financial statements, including the risk
of material misstatement due to fraud and
how it might occur, by holding discussions with
management and those charged with governance.
We inquired of management and those charged
with governance as to any known instances of
non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

•

Based on this understanding, we designed
specific appropriate audit procedures to identify
instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. This included making enquiries of
management and those charged with governance
and obtaining additional corroborative evidence
as required.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above. We are less likely to become aware
of instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that are not closely related to events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company’s members those matters
which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to any party other than the charitable
company and charitable company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.
			
			
			
			
			
					
Neil Finlayson
(Senior Statutory Auditor)			
for and on behalf of
Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor
26 May 2022
Devonshire House					
60 Goswell Road
London
						
EC1M 7AD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING AN
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 August 2021

Note

Restricted
Pension
Funds
(MAT)

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

Year to
31 August
2021

Year to
31 August
2020

£’000

Restricted
Fixed
Assets
Funds
(MAT)
£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Income from
Donations and legacies
Grants
Donations – academy transfers
(MAT)

2

-

1,003

38
3,555

843
314

881
4,872

964
2,589

3

-

17,879

-

-

17,879

6,533

Income from charitable activities

6

-

-

13,442

27,500

40,942

42,528

-

-

-

338

338

301

-

-

-

254

254

289

-

18,882

17,035

29,249

65,166

53,204

-

-

-

223

223

261

1,000
-

8,480
-

16,251
206

27,795
387

53,526
593

46,930
(886)

Trading activities

-

-

-

389

389

417

Total expenditure

1,000

8,480

16,457

28,794

54,731

46,722

-

-

-

1,327

1,327

(517)

(1,000)

10,402

578

1,782

11,762

5,965

377

(58)

(930)

611

-

-

(623)

10,344

(352)

2,393

11,762

5,965

-

-

-

-

-

-

(453)

-

-

-

(453)

(469)

(1,076)

10,344

(352)

2,393

11,309

5,496

Total funds brought forward

(2,682)

26,327

4,378

9,329

37,352

31,856

Total funds carried forward

(3,758)

36,671

4,026

11,722

48,661

37,352

Income from trading activities
Income from investments

4

Total income
Expenditure on
Raising funds
Charitable activities
Ordinary activities
Exceptional

Net gains/(losses) on investments

6
6

11

Net income/(expenditure)
for the period
Transfers between funds

17,18

Net income/(expenditure) before
other recognised gains/(losses)
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Gain on revaluation of Fixed
Assets
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined
benefit pension scheme
Net movement in funds
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Reconciliation of funds

The Group had no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Financial Activities.
All income and expenditure derive from continuing activities.
The statement provides the consolidated information for the charitable company and its subsidiary undertakings. Total income for the
charitable company alone was £37,558k (2020: £33,281k) and net income was £5,007k (2020: net expenditure £662k).
55 to XX
82 form part of these financial statements.
The notes on pages XX

Classification : Official

51

52
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - 31 August 2021
Company number: 06577534

Fixed assets

Note

31 August 2021
£’000

£’000

31 August 2020
£’000
£’000

Intangible assets

9

248

358

Tangible fixed assets

10

41,784

31,547

Investments

11

11,573

10,642

53,605

42,547

Current assets
Stock
Debtors

13

Cash at bank and in hand

8

9

5,851

5,539

5,394

5,642

11,253

11,190

(11,263)

(12,506)

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts due within one year

14

Net current assets/(liabilities)

(10)

1187
(1,316)

53,595

41,231

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

15

(73)

(183)

Provisions

16

(4,861)

(3,696)

Net assets

19

48,661

37,352

Funds
Restricted pension funds
Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted funds
General fund

17
17
17
18

(3,758)
36,671
4,026
11,722

(2,682)
26,327
4,378
9,329

48,661

37,352

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue on 23
25 May 2022

Terry Duddy
Chair

55 to XX
82 form part of these financial statements.
The notes on pages XX

Classification : Official
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CHARITY BALANCE SHEET - 31 August 2021
Company number: 06577534
CHARITY BALANCE SHEET - 31 August 2021
Note
Company number: 06577534

21
31 August 2021
£’000
£’000

31 August 2020
£’000
£’000

31 August 2021 248
£’000
£’000
5,672

358
31 August 2020
£’000
£’000
4,424

248
11,468
5,672
17,388
-

358
10,528
4,424
15,310
-

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary
Intangible assets
Investments
Tangible fixed assets

9
Note
10
11
9
11
10

Investment in subsidiary
Current assets
Investments
Stock

11

Debtors
Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand
Stock

13

4,640

Debtors
Current liabilities
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts due within one year

13

3,162
8
7,810
4,640

3,594
9
8,122
4,519

3,162
(10,022)
7,810

3,594
(13,242)
8,122

11

11,468
8

14

Current liabilities
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Creditors: amounts due within one year

10,528
9

17,388

4,519

(2,212)
14

(10,022)

15,310

(5,120)
(13,242)

15,176

10,190

Net
current
assets/(liabilities)
Creditors:
amounts
falling due after more than one year

15

(2,212)
(73)

(5,120)
(183)

Provisions

16

(1,103)
15,176

(1,014)
10,190

Creditors:
Net assetsamounts falling due after more than one year

15

(73)
14,000

(183)
8,993

Provisions
Funds

16

(1,103)

(1,014)

Restricted funds
Net assets

17

2,523
14,000

2,156
8,993

11,477

6,837

14,000
2,523

8,993
2,156

General fund
Funds
Restricted funds

18

17

18
11,477 of financial activities and 6,837
General
fundby s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own statement
As
permitted
income and expenditure account. The company’s net income in 2021 was £5,007k (2020: net expenditure £662k)
14,000
8,993
Thepermitted
financial by
statements
were
approved Act
by the
Board
Trustees
and
on 25
23 Mayof2022
2022.
As
s408 of the
Companies
2006,
the of
company
has
notauthorised
presentedfor
itsissue
own statement
financial activities and
income and expenditure account. The company’s net income in 2021 was £5,007k (2020: net expenditure £662k)

Terryfinancial
Duddy statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue on 23 May 2022.
The
Chair
Company Registration No. 06577534
Terry Duddy
Chair
Company Registration No. 06577534

Classification : Official
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 August 2021

Note
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period
Adjusted for:
Fair value of assets acquired on acquisition of subsidiary
Fair value of assets disposed on disposal of subsidiary
Net (gains)/losses on investments
Tangible fixed assets brought in on academy transfer
Revaluation of academy tangible fixed assets
Impairment of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Depreciation charges
Amortisation charges
Defined benefit pension scheme deficit brought in on
academy transfer
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions
payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Interest receivable
Investment income receivable
Interest payable
Capital grants received
(Increase)/Decrease in stock
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities

Year to
31 August 2021
£’000
£’000

Year to
31 August 2020
£’000
£’000

11,762

5,965

(208)
59
(1,327)
(12,721)
(5,158)
7,652
8
395
110

517
(6,831)
5
339
104

-

297

578
45
(254)
73
(1,003)
1
(128)
353

382
35
(5)
(289)
94
(555)
(1)
1,972
1,191

237

3,220

12
12
11
10
10
10
10
10
9

21
21

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Investing activities
Cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiary
Cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiary
Purchase of intangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants received
Proceeds from sale of investments
Interest received
Investment income received

12
12
9
10

241
(48)
(398)
1,003
50
600
1,448

Net cash generated from investing activities
Financing Activities
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid

(181)
(381)
555
62
5
69

(110)
(73)

129
(110)
(94)

Net cash used in financing activities

(183)

(204)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
in the reporting period

1,502

3,145

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

1,892

(1,253)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

3,394

1,892

5,394
(2,000)

5,642
(3,750)

3.394

1,892

Relating to:
Bank balances and short-term deposits
Bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents

Classification : Official
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2021
1. Accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which
have been applied consistently except where noted), judgements
and key sources of estimated uncertainty, is set out below.
Catch22 Charity Limited is a charitable company (no. 06577534),
limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales and
registered with the Charity Commission (no 1124127). The
registered office is 27 Pear Tree Street, London EC1V 3AG.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). The company is a public benefit
entity for the purposes of FRS 102 and a registered charity
established as a company limited by guarantee and therefore has
also prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(the FRS 102 Charities SORP) and the Companies Act 2006.
Going concern
The trustees have assessed whether the use of the going concern
basis is appropriate and have considered possible events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt on the ability of the
charitable group to continue as a going concern. The trustees
have made this assessment for a period of at least one year from
the date of approval of the financial statements. In particular, the
trustees have considered the charitable company’s forecast and
projections and have considered the potential impact of the
continuing Covid-19 outbreak on the viability of the charitable
group. Whilst some income lines continue to be affected, they are
partly mitigated by costs savings. The trustees have also taken
action to rationalise the charitable group to save cost and
strengthen its financial position by merging subsidiary charities
fully into Catch22 and relinquishing membership of organisations
that are not core to the charitable groups’ objectives. Annual
budgets and forecasts have been revised taking this into account
with prudent figures for both income and expenditure. The charity
has an investment portfolio held in relatively liquid funds valued at
£11.47m as at 31 August 2021 with an available working capital
facility secured against this of up to £5.0m (£2.0m drawn as at 31
August 2021). This facility is due for renewal in December 2022,
but the trustees expect that it will be renewed on similar terms.
This amounts to £9.5m of available cash should it be required and
in addition there is a £0.5m unsecured overdraft facility available
with Barclays Bank plc (£nil utilised at 31 August 2021). After
making enquiries the trustees have concluded that there is a
reasonable expectation that the charitable company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. The charitable company therefore continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the
functional currency of the charitable company. Monetary amounts
are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds.
The charity has taken advantage of the exemption in the
Companies Act 2006 not to present its own statement of financial
activities. The results of the charity for the year ended 31 August
2021 are set out here: total income of £37,558k (2020: £33,281k)
total expenditure of £33,878k (2020: £33,417k), net gains on
investments £1,327k (2020: £526k net loss), resulting in net
movement in funds of £5,007k (2020:(£662k)).
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which
have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below:

Classification : Official

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of Catch22
Charity Limited and all its subsidiaries apart from Launch22 Limited.
The company has taken advantage of the exemptions provided by
section 405 of the Companies Act 2006 not to include Launch22 as it
is not material to the group.
On acquisition of subsidiaries, acquisition accounting is used. All of
the assets and liabilities that exist at the date of acquisition are
recorded at their fair values reflecting their condition at that date.
Where subsidiaries are acquired for nil consideration and are akin to
a gift, the fair value of the assets and liabilities at the date of
acquisition are recognised as voluntary income in the statement of
financial activities. All changes to those assets and liabilities and the
resulting surpluses or deficits that arise after the group has gained
control of the subsidiary are charged to the post-acquisition statement
of financial activities. All intra-group transactions and balances
between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.
Income
All income is recognised when there is entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable, and the amount can be measured reliably. The
following accounting policies are applied to income.
Grants and fees
Where contract and grant funding is subject to specific performance
conditions, the income is recognised as earned (as the related services
are provided or outcomes delivered). Any amounts received in excess
of what has been earned by the year end are included within deferred
income in current liabilities. Other grant income is recognised where
there is entitlement, receipt is probable, and the amount can be
measured with sufficient reliability.
Donations
Donations and all other receipts from fundraising are reported gross
and are accounted for on a receivable basis. The related fundraising
costs are reported in costs of raising funds.
Investment Income
Investment income is accounted for when receivable and includes the
related tax recoverable.
Expenditure
Liabilities are recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation
to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer
of economic benefit will be required in settlement and the amount of
the obligations can be measured reliably. All expenditure is accounted
for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that
aggregate all costs related to the category. The following accounting
policies area applied to expenditure:
Allocation of overhead and support costs
Overhead, support and governance costs are allocated between the
cost of raising funds and charitable activities. Overhead, support and
governance costs relating to charitable activities have been
apportioned between activities.
Governance costs
Governance costs are included within support costs and consist of
trustees’ expenses and annual audit and non-audit fees.
Costs of raising funds
The costs of generating funds consist of investment management
fees and the costs of raising funds, including an apportionment of
overhead, support and governance costs.
Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities include grants payable and other costs
directly associated with providing the services and support provided
by the charity and an apportionment of overhead, support and
governance costs.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Expenditure (continued)
Trading activities
Costs of trading activities include costs directly associated with
providing the services provided through trading and an
apportionment of overhead, support and governance costs.
Intangible Assets
Development costs for future IT projects are capitalised at cost,
provided it is likely to bring future economic benefit to the group.
If the criteria for recognition as assets are not met, the expense
is recognised in the statement of financial activities in the period
in which it is incurred. Capitalised IT costs include all direct and
indirect costs that are directly attributable to the development
process. The costs are amortised using the straight-line method
over 3 to 5 years being their estimated useful lives.
Capitalisation of assets
Assets with a value of greater than £10,000 (and some lower
value vehicles and IT equipment with an estimated useful life of
at least 4 or 3 years respectively) are capitalised and
depreciated to write off the cost of the assets over their
estimated useful lives.
Tangible fixed assets
Land and buildings and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost or, in the case of certain freehold and long
leasehold land and buildings, valuation less depreciation which
is provided in equal annual instalments over the estimated useful
life of the assets. The rates of depreciation are:
• Freehold property – 2% per annum
• Long leasehold property – over term of lease
• Furniture and equipment – 20% and 33% per annum
• Motor vehicles – 25% per annum
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
has been amortised on a straight-line basis over three or five
years.
Investments
Investments are stated at market value at the balance sheet
date. Any change in the market value of investments is taken to
the relevant fund together with any profits or losses on disposal
of investments during the year.
Stock
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is based on the cost of purchase on a first in, first out basis.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less
additional costs to completion and disposal
Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity date of three months or
less.
Debtors and creditors
Debtors or creditors receivable or payable within one year of the
reporting date are carried at their transaction price. Debtors and
creditors that are receivable or payable in more than one year
and not subject to a market rate of interest are measured at the
present value of the expected future receipts or payment
discounted at a market rate of interest.

Classification : Official

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a
liability and an expense. The cost of any unused holiday entitlement
is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.
Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense
when the charity is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.
Pension costs – Defined Contribution Schemes
The Group makes payments to defined contribution pension schemes
on behalf of qualifying employees. Such contributions are charged in
the Statement of Financial Activities as they fall due. The
contributions are invested separately from the charity’s assets.
Pension benefits – Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Retirement benefits to employees of the Catch22 Multi Academies
Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined
benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so
as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with
the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The
contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis
of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As
stated in note 21, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting.
The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to
which they relate.
The LGPS’ are funded schemes, and the assets are held separately
from those of the Trust in separate trustee administered funds.
Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method
and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a
high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and
are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to
operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on
the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets
at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and
losses.
Leased assets
Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the statement of
financial activities in equal amounts over the period of the leases.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
In kind funding/support
The Group benefits from the services of secondees, many
thousands of voluntary hours and unclaimed out-of-pocket
expenses by a very large number of supporters. In addition,
companies, organisations and individuals have, in many cases,
provided the use of facilities, equipment and premises for
various activities and meetings without charge. The value of
such gifts in kind have been estimated and included in the
consolidated statement of financial activities as income and
expenditure when there is a cost to the third party of donating
the gift/service. Although our systems are not set up to
summarise the total value of these gifts in kind, we do know they
are worth in excess of £100k (2020: £50k). This figure does not
include a value for the volunteer work which is indispensable to
the work that the Group undertakes.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
In preparing financial statements it is necessary to make certain
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The following judgements and
estimates are considered by the trustees to have most significant
effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements:
a)

Local Government Pension Scheme liability
The present value of the Local Government Pension Schemes
defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions.
The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the
carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used
by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August
2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on
the carrying amount of the pension liability. Parliament has
agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to
a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding
Local Government Pension scheme liabilities would be met by
the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force
on 18 July 2013.

b)

Restricted funds
Restricted funds represent grant, donations and legacies
received which are allocated by the donor for specific purposes.

Useful Economic Lives of Intangible Assets
The annual amortisation charge for intangible assets is sensitive
to changes in the estimated lives and residual values of the
assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are
reassessed annually. They are amended when necessary to
reflect current estimates, based on technological advances,
future investments and economic utilisation. Goodwill and
computer software impairment reviews are performed annually.
These reviews require an estimation of the value is use of the
cash generating units to which goodwill and software has been
allocated and the public benefit derived from the services
provided to beneficiaries in fulfilment of the company and group’s
charitable objectives.

c)

Unrestricted funds
Revaluation reserves relate to the measurement of the fair value
of certain freehold property. Designated funds are funds that the
trustees have designated to be used for specific purposes.
General unrestricted funds represent funds which are
expendable at the discretion of the trustees in the furtherance of
the objects of the Charity.

Impairment of Investments in Subsidiaries
Impairment reviews of investment in subsidiaries are carried out
annually. These reviews require an estimation of both the
expected future cash generation of the charitable subsidiaries to
which the investments relate, and consideration of the public
benefit derived from the services provided to beneficiaries in
fulfilment of the company and group’s charitable objectives.

d)

Land and buildings transferred on conversion
Long leasehold title of land and buildings has been transferred to
the Catch22 Multi Academies Trust at £nil consideration. The
premises have been recognised in the Trust’s accounts at their
fair value as at the date of transfer. This has been estimated at
the most recent valuation figures provided by the transferring
local authority, as a best approximation of fair value.

e)

Impairment of Long Leasehold Land & Buildings
Impairment reviews of long leasehold land and buildings are
carried out annually. These reviews require an estimation of their
market value of the land and buildings and the public benefit
derived from the charitable group’s services provided to
beneficiaries in fulfilment of the company and group’s charitable
objectives. The trustees recognise the significant uncertainty in
the valuation of commercial property caused by the Covid-19
pandemic but do not think there is sufficient evidence to indicate
that that the value of the company’s long leasehold land and
buildings has been materially impaired.
.

Taxation
The charitable company is considered to pass the tests set out in
Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation
tax purposes. Accordingly, it is potentially exempt from taxation
in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to
the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively for
charitable purposes.
Fund Accounting
The group maintains various types of funds as follows:
Restricted Pension funds
Restricted pension reserves are resources or liabilities relating to
the group’s obligations to the Local Government Pension
Scheme, of which some of its employees are members.
Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be
applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where
the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Classification : Official

57

58

26
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2021
Comparative Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2020
Restricted
Pension
Funds (MAT)
Note
Income from
Donations and legacies
Grants
Donation – academy transfers
(MAT)

£’000

Restricted
Fixed
Assets
Funds
(MAT)
£’000

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

Year to
31 August
2020

£’000

£’000

£’000

2
2

-

-

469

495

964

-

555

1,799

235

2,589

3

(297)

6,830

-

-

6,533

6

-

-

15,585

26,943

42,528

-

-

-

301

301

-

-

-

289

289

(297)

7,385

17,853

28,263

53,204

-

-

-

261

261

734
-

241
-

17,637
-

28,318
(886)

46,930
(886)

Trading activities

-

-

-

417

417

Total expenditure

734

241

17,637

28,110

46,722

-

-

-

(517)

(517)

(1,031)

7,144

216

(364)

5,965

317

(23)

(321)

27

-

(714)

7,121

(105)

(337)

5,965

(469)

-

-

-

(469)

(1,183)

7,121

(105)

(337)

5,496

Total funds brought forward

(1,499)

19,206

4,483

9,666

31,856

Total funds carried forward

(2,682)

26,327

4,378

9,329

37,352

Income from charitable activities
Income from trading activities
Income from investments

5

Total income
Expenditure on
Raising funds
Charitable activities
Ordinary activities
Exceptional

Net gains/(losses) on investments

6

11

Net income/(expenditure)
for the period
Transfers between funds

17,18

Net income/(expenditure) before
other recognised gains/(losses)
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined
benefit pension scheme
Net movement in funds

21

Reconciliation of funds

The Group had no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Financial Activities

Classification : Official
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2. Donations, legacies and grants
Year to 31 August 2021

NCS & employability
Education
Justice
Young people & families
Place based delivery and
early action
Other
Transfer from Ripplez CIC

Year to 31 August 2020

Fixed Asset
Restricted
£’000

Restricted

Unrestricted
£’000

Total
funds
£’000

Fixed Asset
Restricted
£’000

£’000

1,003
-

Restricted

Unrestricted

£’000

£’000

Total
funds
£’000

2,451
219

215

2,451
1,003
434

555
-

693
15
191

115
126

693
555
130
317

-

366
557
-

286
448
208

652
1,005
208

-

407
962
-

301
188
-

708
1,150
-

1,003

3,593

1,157

5,753

555

2,268

730

3,553

The group has benefited from the support of several private donors, trusts, foundations and corporate entities including Barclays Bank plc, The
Clothworkers’ Foundation, Salesforce, J.P.Morgan, The National Lottery Community Fund, Microsoft and National Grid.

3. Donations – academy transfers (MAT)

Transferred from Department for Education (note a)
Transfer of new academies (note b)
Transfer from local authority (note c)
Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust (note d)

Year to
31 August
2021
Restricted
Fixed Assets
Fund
£’000

Year to
31 August
2020
Restricted
Fixed Assets
Fund
£’000

5,158
12,460
261
17,879

3,100
3,433
6,533

a)

Transfer on conversion (transferred from Department for Education)
On 11 March 2020 the land and building of the Spires Academy were transferred to Catch22 Multi Academies Trust from Northamptonshire
County Council for £nil consideration.
The transfer was accounted for in the comparative period as a combination that is in substance a gift. The land and buildings transferred were
valued at the best estimate of their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a corresponding net
amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as ‘Donations – academy transfers (MAT)’.
During the current period the land and buildings at this academy have been revalued following receipt of the land and buildings valuation as at
31 August 2021 performed by Eddisons. The increase in valuation of land and buildings is as follows:
Year to
Year to
31 August
31 August
2020
2020
Transfer in
Transfer in
recognised
recognised
£’000
£’000
Tangible fixed assets
Long leasehold land and buildings in respect of prior periods
5,158
Long leasehold land and buildings
3,100
5,158
3,100

b)

Transfer of new academies
On 1 April 2021 the Austen Academy was opened by Catch22 Multi Academies Trust. During the period the land and buildings transferred
were valued as at 31 August 2021 by Hampshire County Council Property Services. The value of the land and buildings transferred is as
follows:
Year to
Year to
31 August
31 August
2020
2020
Transfer in
Transfer in
recognised
recognised
£’000
£’000
Tangible fixed assets
Long leasehold land and buildings
12,460
-

Classification : Official
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3. Donations – academy transfers (MAT) (continued)
c)

Transfer from local authority
During the year Torbay Council transferred long leasehold land and buildings to the Catch22 Multi Academies Trust valued as £261k (£2020:
£nil).

d)

Transfer from local authority for the year ended 31 August 2020 relates to the following:

Tangible fixed assets
Long leasehold land and buildings
Pension liabilities
Net Assets

Restricted
Pension
Fund
£000

Restricted
Fixed
Asset
£000

Restricted
£000

Total
Funds
£000

(297)
(297)

3,730
3,730

-

3,730
(297)
3,433

4. Investment income
Restricted
funds
£’000

Unrestricted
funds
£’000

Year to
31 August
2021
£’000

Year to
31 August
2020
£’000

-

254

254

289

-

254

254

289

Year to
31 August
2021
£’000

Year to
31 August
2020
£’000

395
10
110
828

338
5
104
1,126

35

31

40
6

44
32

Investment income
All prior year investment income was also unrestricted

5. Net income/(expenditure) for the year

This is stated after charging:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible fixed assets
Property rental
Auditor’s remuneration
Audit fees for Charity’s annual accounts
Audit fees for other services:
- the audit of the Charity’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation
- other fees and taxation advice

6. Charitable activities
Analysis of income from charitable activities for the year ended 31 August 2021
Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

NCS & Employability
Education
Justice
Young people & families
Vocational training
Place based delivery and early action
Other

£’000
63
11,295
271
1,448
361
4

£’000
4,276
6,033
8,012
5,259
2,755
947
218

Year to
31 August
2021
£’000
4,339
17,328
8,283
6,707
2,755
1,308
222

Total

13,442

27,500

40,942
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6. Charitable activities (continued)
Analysis of income from charitable activities for the year ended 31 August 2020
Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

NCS & Employability
Education
Justice
Young people & families
Vocational training
Place based delivery and early action
Other

£’000
44
10,088
3,850
1,131
472
-

£’000
3,173
5,948
6,825
6,798
3,165
1,023
11

Year to
31 August
2021
£’000
3,217
16,036
10,675
7,929
3,165
1,495
11

Total

15,585

26,943

42,528

Unrestricted
Funds

Year to
31 August
2021

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities for the year ended 31 August 2021
Restricted
Pension Funds

NCS & employability
Education
Justice
Young people & families
Vocational training
Place based delivery and early action
Other
Exceptional items (see below)

£’000

1,000
-

Restricted
Fixed
Assets
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds

8,480
-

1,848
10,502
866
1,615
827
593
206

3,234
7,254
7,179
5,648
3,111
1,214
155
387

5,082
27,236
8,045
7,263
3,111
2,041
748
593

Total

1,000

8,480

16,457

28,182

54,119

Unrestricted
Funds

Year to
31 August
2020

£’000

£’000

£’000

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities for the year ended 31 August 2020
Restricted
Pension Funds

NCS & employability
Education
Justice
Young people & families
Vocational training
Place based delivery and early action
Other
Exceptional items (see below)
Total

Restricted
Funds

£’000

Restricted
Fixed
Assets
Funds
£’000

241
-

1,310
9,686
3,705
1,314
1,060
562
-

3,024
6,916
6,306
6,918
3,907
1,197
50
(886)

4,334
17,577
10,011
8,232
3,907
2,257
612
(886)

734

241

17,637

27,432

46,044

734
-

£’000

£’000

£’000

Included in restricted income (total) and expenditure for Justice is £3,840k and £3,705k respectively for the Unlocked Graduates programme.
From 1 September 2020 this project was transferred to a separate company, of which Catch22 is no longer a member.
Included in income (total) and expenditure for Justice is £474k and £495k respectively from the subsidiary Only Connect UK. With effect from
1 September 2020, the charity left the group and Catch22 ceased to be a member.
Included within unrestricted income and expenditure on Justice charitable activities Is income of £21k from the Local Leadership and Integration Fund
with related expenditure of £21k. The project started in July 2021.
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6. Charitable activities (continued)

Support Costs
The group operates a shared services approach with the majority of support services being provided by Catch22 Charity Limited to the other companies
within the group. Support costs incurred directly by other companies within the group, mainly relating to management and administration, are included
within the direct costs of the activity carried out by that company. An analysis of the cost of support services (which are included in the charitable
expenditure above) provided by Catch22 Charity Limited to the group is set out below. Costs have been allocated to charitable activities as a proportion of
the direct expenditure incurred on that activity.
Year Ended
31 August 2021

Raising Funds
Charitable activities:
NCS & employability
Education
Justice
Young people &
families
Vocational training
Place based delivery
and early action
Other
Trading activities

Business
development,
marketing and
communications
£’000

Facilities
& IT
£’000

Finance and
commercial
£’000

Human
resources
£’000

Management
and strategy
£’000

Compliance
and risk
management
£’000

Total
£’000

63
338
100

79
425
126

109
584
173

86
456
136

39
205
61

37
197
58

413
2,208
654

90

113

156

123

55

52

589

39

49

67

52

24

22

253

25

32

44

35

16

15

167

9

12

16

13

6

5

61

664

836

1,149

904

406

386

4,345

5

6

8

7

3

3

32

672

845

1,162

915

411

391

4,396

Compliance
and risk
management
£’000
3

Total
£’000
25

3

3

5

4

2

2

19

Governance costs included in the above support costs amount to £75k (2020: £88k)

Year Ended
31 August 2020

Raising Funds
Charitable activities:
NCS & employability
Education
Justice
Young people &
families
Vocational training
Place based delivery
and early action
Other
Trading activities

Business
development,
marketing and
communications
£’000
4

Facilities
& IT
£’000
5

Finance
and
commercial
£’000
6

Human
resources
£’000
5

Management
and strategy
£’000
2

66
266
151

80
324
184

117
479
273

81
329
187

40
160
91

44
178
101

428
1,736
987

125

152

224

154

75

83

813

59

72

106

73

36

40

386

34
9
710

42
11
865

61
17
1,277

42
11
877

21
6
429

23
6
475

223
60
4,633

6

8

11

8

4

4

41

720

878

1,294

890

435

482

4,699

Year to
31 August
2021
Restricted
£’000

Year to
31 August
2021
Unrestricted
£’000

Year to
31 August
2021
Total
£’000

Year to
31 August
2020
Unrestricted
£’000

-

180
-

180
-

81
33

196

131
27

131
223

(1,000)
-

Exceptional Items

Included within Cost of Charitable Activities are the following exceptional items:

Organisational restructuring and service and site closures
Provision against group company debtor (not consolidated)
Clawback / (Expected Recovery from third party) of funding relating to
non-delivery by subcontractors
Impairment of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of Only Connect UK from the charitable group (note
12)
Total

10

49

59

-

206

387

593

(886)
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7. Staff costs
Year to
31 August
2021
£’000

Year to
31 August
2020
£’000

26,370

26,392

101

133

National Insurance contributions

2,488

2,508

Pension contributions

2,403

1,728

31,362

30,761

871
4
78

876
5
86

953

967

Salaries
Redundancies

The average number of employees during the period split as follows:
Charitable Activities
Trading
Support
Total
During the period payments to agencies for temporary staff amounted to £1,156k (2020: £1,591k)
Agency staff are used to cover temporary vacancies and to meet short-term needs.

The number of employees whose annual emoluments were £60,000 and above excluding pension contributions were as follows:
Year to
31 August
2021
£’000

Year to
31 August
2020
£’000

£60,001 - £70,000

15

17

£70,001 - £80,000

4

7

£80,001 - £90,000

-

3

£90,001 - £100,000

3

2

£100,001-£110,000

-

-

£110,001-£120,000

-

-

£140,001-£150,000

1

1

Employer’s pension contributions of £208,634 (2020: £201,499) were paid on behalf of the above staff.
No trustees received any remuneration during the period (2020: none). No trustees were reimbursed expenses during the year (2020: one trustee
£884 for travel expenses).
Key Management Personnel
The total employee benefits of the Key Management Personnel were £990,719 (2020: £1,052,140).
Volunteers
The average number of volunteers for the year to 31 August 2021 totalled 130 (2020: 134). 53 volunteers worked in Young People & Families on
various projects, 18 volunteers worked in Justice, 57 worked in Place Based Delivery & Early Action and 2 worked in our other delivery hubs.
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8. Intangible fixed assets – Consolidated

Cost
1 September 2020
Disposals
31 August 2021

Computer
Software
£’000

Goodwill
£’000

Total
£’000

1,961

457

2,418

-

(112)

(112)

1,961

345

2,306

1,603

457

2,060

Amortisation
1 September 2020
Charge for the year

110

-

110

-

(112)

(112)

1,713

345

2,058

At 31 August 2021

248

-

248

At 31 August 2020

358

-

358

Disposals
31 August 2021
Net book value

9. Intangible fixed assets – Charity only

Computer
Software
£’000

Total
£’000

1,961

1,961

-

-

1,961

1,961

1,603

1,603

110

110

1,713

1,713

At 31 August 2021

248

248

At 31 August 2020

358

358

Costs
1 September 2020
Additions
31 August 2021
Amortisation
1 September 2020
Charge for the year
31 August 2021
Net book value
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10. Tangible fixed assets – Consolidated

Long leasehold
land and
buildings
£’000

Freehold land
& buildings
£’000

Furniture &
equipment
£’000

Motor
Vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

1 September 2020

31,376

782

809

30

32,997

Transfer of academies

12,721

-

-

-

12,721

-

-

68

-

68

44

-

398

Cost or Revaluation

Transfers on acquisition
Additions
Revaluations - academies

354
5,158

-

-

-

5,158

(28)

-

(126)

-

(154)

49,581

782

795

30

51,188

1 September 2020

882

141

397

30

1,450

Transfer relating to prior year

(20)

-

20

-

-

-

-

51

-

51

(28)

-

(116)

-

(144)

Disposals
31 August 2021
Depreciation

Transfers on acquisition
Disposals
Charge for the year

261

13

121

-

395

7,619

-

33

-

7,652

8,714

154

506

30

9,404

At 31 August 2021

40,867

628

289

-

41,784

At 31 August 2020

30,494

641

412

-

31,547

Furniture &
equipment
£’000

Total
£’000

Impairments
31 August 2021
Net book value

10. Tangible fixed assets – Charity only
Long leasehold
land and
buildings
£’000

Freehold land
& buildings
£’000

1 September 2020

3,478

782

678

4,938

Transfers on acquisition – from Community Links Trust

1,534

-

312

1,846

-

-

68

68

254

-

Cost or Revaluation

Transfers on acquisition – from Ripplez CIC
Additions
Disposals
31 August 2021

44

298

(109)

(109)

5,266

782

993

7,041

514

Depreciation
1 September 2020

58

141

315

Transfer relating to prior year

(20)

-

20

-

Transfers on acquisition – from Community Links Trust

364

-

143

507

-

-

51

51

Transfers on acquisition – from Ripplez CIC
Disposals

-

-

(101)

(101)

57

13

104

174

191

-

33

224

650

154

565

1,369

At 31 August 2021

4,616

628

428

5,672

At 31 August 2020

3,420

641

363

4,424

Charge for the year
Impairments
31 August 2021
Net book value

66
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11. Investment in subsidiary – Charity only
Investment
in
subsidiary
£’000

Cost

Total
£’000

475

475

475

475

-

-

475

475

At 31 August 2021

-

-

At 31 August 2020

-

-

31 August 2020 and 31 August 2021
Impairment
1 September 2020
Charge for the year
31 August 2020
Net book value

11. Investments – Consolidated

31 August
2021
£’000

Investment in associated LLP

31 August
2020
£’000

105

105

Other investments at market value

11,468

10,537

Investments at market value

11,573

10,642

Quoted investments

11,214

10,001

Cash held by investment managers

249

531

Unlisted investments

110

110

11,573

10,642

10,642

11,001

1 September 2020
Acquisitions at cost
Disposal proceeds

6,508

7,056

(6,622)

(7,001)

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the portfolio

(282)

103

Change in market value

1,327

(517)

Market value at 31 August 2021

11,573

10,642

Historic cost at 31 August 2021

10,418

10,290

31 August 2021
Market value

31 August 2020
Original cost

%

Market value

Original cost

£’000

%

£’000

HSBC - equity

1,231

11

1,121

1,011

10

1,115

HSBC – funds

6,359

54

5,332

5,048

43

4,582

HSBC – fixed income

2,963

26

2,973

2,850

27

2,888

HSBC - others

657

6

629

1,088

14

1,060

HSBC - cash

249

2

249

531

5

531

Other - listed
Other - unlisted

4

-

4

4

-

4

110

1

110

110

1

110

10,418

10,642

100

10,290

11,573

100
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11. Investments – Charity only

31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
2020
£’000

Investments at market value

11,459

10,528

Quoted investments

11,210

9,997

249

531

11,459

10,528

1 September 2020

10,528

10,886

Acquisitions at cost

6,508

7,056

Cash held by investment managers

(6,622)

(7,001)

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the portfolio

(282)

103

Change in market value

1,327

(516)

Market value at 31 August 2021

11,459

10,528

Historic cost at 31 August 2021

10,313

10,176

Disposal proceeds

31 August 2021
Market value

31 August 2020
Original cost

Market value

Original cost

£’000

%

£’000

£’000

%

£’000

HSBC – equity

1,231

11

1,121

1,011

10

1,115

HSBC – funds

6,359

55

5,332

5,048

43

4,582

HSBC – fixed income

2,963

26

2,973

2,850

27

2,888

HSBC – others

657

6

629

1,088

15

1,060

HSBC – cash

249

2

249

531

5

531

Other - listed

4

-

4

-

-

-

Other - unlisted

5

-

5

-

-

-

11,468

100

10,313

10,528

100

10,176

12. Subsidiaries
The charity is the parent of the following subsidiaries:13

Name of subsidiary
The Royal Philanthropic
Society incorporating
the Rainer Foundation
Charity Number
229132

Country of
incorporation
England and
Wales

Registered
Office

Activity

Level of
control

N/A

Dormant

100%

Aggregate
amount of
assets,
liabilities
and funds
£’000
-

Turnover
incl.
invest
income
£’000
-

Costs
£’000
-

Surplus/
(deficit)
for the
year
£’000
-

Crime Concern Trust
Limited
Company Number:
02259016
Charity Number
800735

England and
Wales

(1)

Dormant

100%

-

-

-

-

Catch22 Social
Enterprise Limited
Company Number:
06166785

England and
Wales

(1)

Dormant

100%

(646)

-

-

-

Catch22 Social
Enterprise Solutions
Limited
Company Number:
07971380

England and
Wales

(1)

Providing training and
employment opportunities
for the unemployed

100%

(5)

-

-

-
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12. Subsidiaries (continued)

100%

Aggregate
amount of
assets,
liabilities
and funds
£’000
-

Turnover
incl.
invest
income
£’000
-

Level of
control

Country of
incorporation

Registered
Office

Pupil Parent Partnership
Limited
Company Number:
04872659

England and
Wales

(2)

Include
Company Number:
02429781
Charity Number
0803333

England and
Wales

(2)

Dormant

100%

-

Catch22 Multi
Academies Trust
Limited
Company Number:
08299181

England and
Wales

(2)

Advancing for the public
benefit, education in the
UK through the operation
of alternative provision
schools

100%

34,546

Community Links Trust
Limited
Company Number:
02661182
Charity Number
1018517

England and
Wales

(3)

Community delivery and
early action

100%

Community Links
Trading Limited
Company Number:
05737749

England and
Wales

(3)

Events management,
production services and
storage

100%

Ripplez Community
Interest Company
Company Number:
07484690

England and
Wales

(4)

Support vulnerable
women and families

100%

England and
Wales

(2)

Mentoring, advice and
training, access to
facilities and workspace to
enable persons to become
self-supporting
Ceased operating July
2020

100%

Name of subsidiary

Activity
Dormant

Costs
£’000

Surplus/
(deficit)
for the
year
£’000

-

-

-

-

-

30,408

(20,792)

9,616

See ‘B’ below

(170)

250

(357)

See ‘C’ below

Not consolidated:
Launch22 Limited
Company Number:
08789117
Charity Number
1156715

Ceased operating July 2020

Launch22 is not included in the consolidated financial statements of Catch22 Charity Limited as the company has taken advantage of the exemption
provided by section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 not to include Launch22, as it is immaterial to the group.
The list of Registered Offices is set out below:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

(A)

Rectory Lodge, High Street, Brasted, Kent, TN16 IJF
27 Pear Tree Street, London, EC1V 3AG
105 Barking Road, London, E16 4HQ
Derwent Stepping Stones. St. Marks Road, Derby DE21 6AH

Only Connect UK

On 1 September 2020, Catch 22 Charity Limited ceased to be a member of Only Connect UK and that company left the charitable group. The net assets
at the time of transfer were £59k, giving a loss on disposal of £59k in Catch22’s consolidated accounts. This is included as an exceptional expenditure
(see note 6).

(107)

2
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12. Subsidiaries (continued)
(B)

Community Links Trust Limited

On 1 February 2021 the charitable undertaking of Community Links Trust was transferred as a going concern Catch 22 Charity Limited. All the assets
and liabilities were transferred to Catch 22 Charity on this date and Community Links Trust ceased to trade as a separate charitable company from 1
February 2021.
A summary of the results are shown below:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

899

2,364

(696)

(2,099)

Net assets transferred to Catch22

(3,641)

-

Net movement in funds

(3,438)

265

Fixed assets

-

1,268

Income
Expenditure

Current assets

-

3,074

Current liabilities

-

(904)

Net assets

-

3,438

Restricted funds

-

1,167

Unrestricted general funds

-

2,271

Total funds

-

3,438

(C)

Ripplez Community Interest Company

Catch 22 Charity Limited became the sole member of Ripplez Community Interest Company on 1 January 2021 (a company limited by guarantee,
company number 07484690) and accordingly on that date Ripplez became a subsidiary of the group. On that date, Ripplez, transferred all of its trade
and net assets to Catch 22 Charity Limited, except for one contract which continued to be delivered by Ripplez CIC.
A summary of the results are shown below:

Income
Expenditure

17 months
to 31 August
2021
£’000
1,549
(1,668)

Net assets transferred to Catch22

(208)

Net movement in funds

(326)

Fixed assets
Current assets

-

15

Current liabilities

(96)

Net assets

(81)

Unrestricted general funds

(81)

The net assets transferred at the time of acquisition were:
Fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

£’000
16
380
(188)
208
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13. Debtors: amounts due within one year
Consolidated

31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
2020
£’000

Grant and trade debtors

1,846

1,755

Other debtors

1,454

1,161

Prepayments and accrued income

2,551

2,623

5,851

5,539

Grant and trade debtors

1,728

1,362

Other debtors

1,098

1,072

Prepayments and accrued income

1,438

1,916

Charity only

Amounts owed by other group companies

14. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Consolidated
Bank overdraft
Bank loan

376

169

4,640

4,519

31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
2020
£’000

2,000

3,750

110

110

Trade creditors

1,433

801

Accrued expenditure and income in advance

5,833

5,822

Other taxes and social security

1,562

1,699

331

324

11,269

12,506

Other creditors

Included in other creditors are outstanding pension contributions amounting to £226k (2020: £218k). £2,000k (2020: £3,750k) of the bank overdraft is
secured by a fixed charge over the investments of the charity. It is provided by HSBC Private Bank and is repayable on demand and interest is charged
at 1.25% above the base rate. The total facility available is £5,000k. In addition, the charitable group has a £500k unsecured overdraft available from
Barclays Bank with interest charged at 3% above the base rate.
Charity only
Bank overdraft

2,000

3,750

Bank loan

110

110

Trade creditors

913

418

Accrued expenditure and income in advance

5,390

4,728

Other taxes and social security

1,438

1,545

Amounts owing to other group companies
Other creditors

-

2,525

171

166

10,022

13,242

Included in other creditors are outstanding pension contributions amounting to £87k (2020: £90k). £2,000k (2020: £3,750k) of the bank overdraft is
secured by a fixed charge over the investments of the charity. It is provided by HSBC Private Bank and is repayable on demand and interest is charged
at 1.25% above the base rate. the total facility available is £5,000k. In addition, the charity has a £500k unsecured overdraft available from Barclays Bank
with interest charged at 3% above the base rate.
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14. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Consolidated – deferred income movement

£’000

Balance at 1 September 2020

4,296

Amount released in the period

(4,296)

Amount deferred in the period

4,270

Balance at 31 August 2021 – all due within one year

4,270

Charity only – deferred income movement

£’000

Balance at 1 September 2020

3,613

Amount released in the period

(3,613)

Amount deferred in the period

4,205

Balance at 31 August 2021 – all due within one year

4,205

15. Creditors: amounts falling after more than one year

Consolidated
Bank loan

31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
2020
£’000

73

183

73

183

73

183

73

183

Charity only
Bank loan

A bank loan of £1.1m was received in May 2013 and is repayable in 120 monthly instalments of £9,167. The amount outstanding at the 31
August 2020 is £183k – shown as £73k due in more than one year and £110k due in less than one year - (2020: £293k). The bank loan is
secured by a fixed charge over the charity’s leasehold property at Pear Tree Street, London. Interest is charged at 3.28% above base rate.

16. Provisions
31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
2020
£’000

Pension fund deficit (note 18)

3,758

2,682

Potential clawback of funding relating to non-delivery by subcontractors

1,103

1,014

4,861

3,696

1,103

1,014

1.103

1,014

Consolidated

Charity only
Potential clawback of funding relating to non-delivery by subcontractors
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17. Restricted funds

Restricted
pension
funds
£’000

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total
Restricted
funds
£’000

Income

(2,682)
-

26,327
18,882

4,378
17,035

28,023
35,917

Expenditure

(1,000)

(8,480)

(16,457)

(25,937)

377

(58)

(930)

(611)

(453)

-

-

(453)

(3,758)

36,671

4.026

36,939

Balance at 1 September 2020

-

-

Income

-

-

2,156
6,599

2,156
6,599

Expenditure

-

-

(5,747)

(5,747)

(485)

(485)

2,523

2,523

Consolidated
Balance at 1 September 2020

Transfers between funds
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension scheme
Balance at 31 August 2021
Charity only

Transfers between funds
Balance at 31 August 2021

-

-

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Restricted pension funds
These arise in Catch22 Multi Academies Trust and represent the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS defined
benefit pension scheme.
Restricted fixed asset funds
These arise in Catch22 Multi Academies Trust and represent the net book value of the land and buildings of academies
transferred from the local authority on conversion.
Restricted funds
These arise from donations, grants and fees to fund activities or services as specified by the donor. Income represents
donations, grants and fees from government bodies and corporate and trust donors. Expenditure represents expenditure on
specific services linked to these restricted donations, grants and fees. Restricted funds also include the activities of the
subsidiary company, Catch 22 Multi Academies Trust Limited.
An analysis of restricted funds by activity is set out below:
Transfers between funds
Restricted pension funds: £377k (2020: £317k) – this represents the actual employer contributions in year to the LGPS
scheme, transferred from restricted funds in the Catch22 Multi Academies Trust
Restricted fixed asset funds: (£58k) (2020: (£23)) – this represents property maintenance expenditure transferred to
restricted funds in the Catch22 Multi Academies Trust
Restricted funds: (£319k) (2020: £(321k)) - (£377k) and £58k as described above. A further (£126k) (2020: (£27k) represents
charges for services between the Charity and Catch22 Multi Academies Trust, transferred from/(to) general funds. The
remaining transfer of (£485k) (2020: £nil) relates to the acquisition of fixed assets using restricted funds.
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17. Restricted funds (continued)
Prior year

Consolidated
Balance at 1 September 2019
Income
Expenditure
Transfers between funds

Restricted
pension
funds
£’000

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total
Restricted
funds
£’000

(1,499)
(297)

19,206
7,385

4,483
17,853

22,190
24,941

(734)

(241)

(17,637)

(18,612)

317

(23)

(321)

(27)

(469)

-

-

(469)

(2,682)

26,327

4,378

28,023

Balance at 1 September 2019

-

-

Income

-

-

2,285
6,712

2,285
6,712

Expenditure

-

-

(6,841)

(6,841)

-

-

2,156

2,156

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension scheme
Balance at 31 August 2020
Charity only

Balance at 31 August 2020
Current year

Consolidated by charitable activity
NCS and employability
Education
Justice
Young people and families
Place based delivery and early action
Place based delivery and early action – fixed assets
Other
Total restricted funds

Charity only by charitable activity
NCS and employability
Justice
Young people and families
Place based delivery and early action
Place based delivery and early action – fixed assets
Other
Total restricted funds
Prior year

Consolidated by charitable activity
NCS and employability
Education
Justice
Young people and families
Place based delivery and early action
Place based delivery and early action – fixed assets
Other
Total restricted funds

Balance
1 September
2020
£’000
690
1,155
605
476
832
335
285
4,378
Balance
1 September
2020
£’000
690
705
476
285
2,156

Balance
1 September
2019
£’000
1,264
1,074
206
467
817
372
283
4,483

Income
£’000
2,515
11,295
271
1,667
727
560
17,035

Income
£’000
2,515
271
1,667
1,251
335
560
6,599

Income
£’000
736
10,088
4,104
1,323
1,039
563
17,853

Expenditure
£’000
(1,848)
(10,502)
(876)
(1,615)
(827)
(196)
(593)
(16,457)

Expenditure
£’000
(1,848)
(976)
(1,615)
(519)
(196)
(593)
(5,747)

Expenditure
£’000
(1,310)
(9,686)
(3,705)
(1,314)
(1,024)
(37)
(561)
(17,637)

Transfers
between
funds
£’000
(445)
(346)
(139)
(930)
Transfers
between
funds
£’000
(346)
(139)
(485)

Transfers
between
funds
£’000
(321)
(321)

Balance
31 August
2021
£’000
1,357
1,503
528
386
252
4,026
Balance
31 August
2021
£’000
1,357
528
386
252
2,523

Balance
31 August
2020
£’000
690
1,155
605
476
832
335
285
4,378
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17. Restricted funds (continued)
Prior year

Balance
1 September
2019
£’000
1,264
271
467
283

Charity only by charitable activity
NCS and employability
Education
Justice
Young people and families

2,285

Total restricted funds

Expenditure
£’000
(1,310)
(3,656)
(1,314)
(561)

Income
£’000
736
4,090
1,323
563
6,712

(6,841)

18. Unrestricted funds

Consolidated
Revaluation reserve
Designated fixed assets
General fund

Balance
1 September
2020
£’000

Income
£’000

Expenditure
£’000

Transfers
between
funds
£’000

Net
gains/(losses)
on
investments
£’000

Transfers
between
funds
£’000
-

Balance
31 August
2020
£’000
690
705
476
285

-

2,156

Net gain on
revaluation
of fixed
assets
£’000

Balance
31 August
2021
£’000

2,522
51
6,756

29,249

(43)
(28,751)

(51)
662

1,327

-

2,479
9,243

Total

9,329

29,249

(28,794)

611

1,327

-

11,722

Charity
Revaluation reserve
General fund
Total

1,649
5,188

869
30,090

(39)
(27,961)

485

1,327

-

2,479
9,129

6,837

30,959

(28,000)

485

1,327

-

11,608

Revaluation reserve
This represents the difference between the net book value and valuation of revalued property.
Designated fixed assets
This represents the net book value of fixed assets held by Community Links Trust, which were not purchased with restricted funds. Depreciation
relating to such fixed assets is charged to this fund.
General fund
This represents funds which are not restricted or designated for specific purposes. General funds are expendable at the discretion of the
trustees to further the charitable objects of the Catch22 group.

Prior year

Consolidated
Revaluation reserve
Designated fixed assets
General fund
Total
Charity
Revaluation reserve
General fund
Total

Balance
1 September
2019
£’000

Income
£’000

Expenditure
£’000

Transfers
between
funds
£’000

Net
gains/(losses)
on
investments
£’000

Net gain on
revaluation
of fixed
assets
£’000

Balance
31 August
2020
£’000

2,589
55
7,022
9,666

28,263
28,263

(67)
(4)
(28,029)
(28,100)

27
27

(527)
(527)

-

2,522
51
6,756
9,329

1,707
5,663
7,370

26,569
26,569

(58)
(26,518)
(26,576)

-

(526)
(526)

-

1,649
5,188
6,837

75

43

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2020
19. Analysis of net assets between funds

Restricted
pension
funds
£’000

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Unrestricted
funds
£’000

31 August
2021
Total
£’000

Tangible fixed assets

-

36,084

-

5,700

41,784

Intangible fixed assets

-

-

-

248

248

Investments

-

-

-

11,573

11,573

Current assets/(liabilities)

-

587

4,026

(4,623)

(10)

Consolidated
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

-

-

-

(73)

(73)

Provisions

(3,758)

-

-

(1,103)

(4,861)

Total net assets

(3,758)

36,671

4,026

11,722

48,661

Tangible fixed assets

-

-

-

5,672

5,672

Intangible fixed assets

-

-

-

248

248

Investments

-

-

-

11,468

11,468

Current assets/(liabilities)

-

-

2,523

(4,735)

(2,212)

Long term liabilities

-

-

-

(73)

(73)

Provisions

-

-

-

(1,103)

(1,103)

Total net assets

-

-

2,523

11,477

14,000

Restricted
pension
funds
£’000

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Unrestricted
funds
£’000

31 August
2020
Total
£’000

Tangible fixed assets

-

25,819

335

5,393

31,547

Intangible fixed assets

-

-

-

358

358

Investments

-

-

-

10,642

10,642

Current assets/(liabilities)

-

508

4,043

(5,867)

(1,316)

Long term liabilities

-

-

-

(183)

(183)

Provisions

(2,682)

-

(1,014)

(3,696)

Total net assets

(2,682)

26,327

4,378

9,329

37,352

Tangible fixed assets

-

-

-

4,424

4,424

Intangible fixed assets

-

-

-

358

358

Investments

-

-

-

10,528

10,528

Current assets/(liabilities)

-

-

2,156

(7,276)

(5,120)

Long term liabilities

-

-

-

(183)

(183)

Provisions

-

-

-

(1,014)

(1,014)

Total net assets

-

-

2,156

6,837

8,993

Long term liabilities

Charity Only
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

Consolidation

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:

Charity Only

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:
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20. Commitments under operating leases
Consolidation

At 31 August 2021 the group had future minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Land and buildings:
expiring in the first year
expiring in the second to fifth year
expiring after five years

31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
2020
£’000

467
567
319

383
105
285

1,353

773

31 August
2021
£’000

31 August
20209
£’000

467
567
319

383
105
285

1,353

773

Charity only

At 31 August 2021 the charity had future minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Land and buildings:
expiring in the first year
expiring in the second to fifth year
expiring after five years
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21. Pension and Similar Obligations
Employees of The Catch22 Multi Academies Trust belong to six principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for
academic and related staff; and Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS’) for non-teaching staff, consisting of the Hampshire County Council Pension
Fund which is managed by Hampshire County Council for Ashwood Academy, The Coppice Springs Academy and The Austen Academy staff, the
Northamptonshire Pension Fund which is managed by Northamptonshire County Council for the Spires Academy staff, the Devon County Council Pension
Fund which is managed by Devon County Council for the Burton Academy and Brunel Academy staff in Torbay, the Norfolk County Council Pension Fund
which is managed by Norfolk County Council for Fen Rivers Academy staff and the Suffolk County Council Pension Fund which is managed by Suffolk
County Council for Everitt Academy staff.
The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the
period ended 31 March 2016 and for the five LGPS schemes 31 March 2019.
Contributions amounting to £138,537 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020: £111,387) and are included within other creditors payable
within one year.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014.
Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary – these contributions are credited
to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions
(Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS affecting contributions during the year was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the
Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:
•
•

•

employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration levy)
total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100
million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million,
giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI,
assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%.
The assumes nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £841k (2020: £665k).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is available on the Teachers’ Pension website.
Under the definitions set out in FRS102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The charitable group has accounted for its contributions
to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The charitable group has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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21. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Schemes

The LGPS’ are funded defined benefit pension schemes, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made
for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £486k (2020: £410k), of which employer’s contributions totalled £377k (2020: £317k) and employees’
contributions totalled £109k (2020: £93k). The agreed contribution rates for future years is between 6.5 and 16.9 per cent for employers and is
between 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding
Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

Hampshire

Norfolk

Northamptonshire

Suffolk

Torbay

Rate of increase in salaries

3.60%

3.60%

3.40%

3.60%

3.85%

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

2.60%

2.90%

2.90%

2.90%

2.85%

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

1.70%

1.65%

1.65%

1.65%

1.70%

Inflation assumption (CPI)

2.60%

2.90%

2.90%

2.90%

2.85%

RPI Inflation

3.60%

3.60%

3.40%

3.60%

3.85%

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

Hampshire

Norfolk

Northamptonshire

Suffolk

Torbay

Rate of increase in salaries

3.30%

2.90%

2.70%

2.90%

3.20%

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

2.30%

2.20%

2.20%

2.20%

2.20%

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

1.70%

1.70%

1.70%

1.70%

1.65%

Inflation assumption (CPI)

2.30%

2.20%

2.20%

2.20%

2.20%

RPI Inflation

3.30%

3.20%

3.20%

3.20%

3.20%
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21. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Schemes (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis
Approximate monetary increase to the obligation as a result of the following changes in assumptions at 31 August 2021 are set out below:
At 31 August

At 31 August

2021

2020

£000

£000

6

5

0.1% increase in the pension increase rate

72

56

0.1% decrease in real discount rate

81

64

1

3

0.5% increase in the pension increase rate

15

42

0.5% decrease in real discount rate

16

46

-

-

0.5% increase in the pension increase rate

15

40

0.5% decrease in real discount rate

15

40

-

-

0.5% increase in the pension increase rate

19

56

0.5% decrease in real discount rate

19

56

Hampshire
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate

Norfolk
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate

Northamptonshire
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate

Suffolk
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate

Torbay
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate

1

1

0.1% increase in the pension increase rate

85

62

0.1% decrease in real discount rate

87

63
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YEAR ENDED 31 August 2020
21. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Schemes (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on
retirement age 65 are:
At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

Hampshire

Norfolk

Northamptonshire

Suffolk

Torbay

Males

23.1 years

21.9 years

21.7 years

22.1 years

22.7 years

Females

25.5 years

24.3 years

24.1 years

24.5 years

24.0 years

Males

24.8 years

23.2 years

22.8 years

23.2 years

24.0 years

Females

27.3 years

26.2 years

25.8 years

26.4 years

25.4 years

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

Hampshire

Norfolk

Northamptonshire

Suffolk

Torbay

Males

23.0 years

21.7 years

21.5 years

21.9 years

22.9 years

Females

25.5 years

23.9 years

23.7 years

24.1 years

24.1 years

Males

24.7 years

22.8 years

22.3 years

22.7 years

24.3 years

Females

27.2 years

25.5 years

25.1 years

25.6 years

25.5 years

Retiring today

Retiring in 20 years

Retiring today

Retiring in 20 years

The charitable group’s share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme and the expected rate of return
were:

Fair value at
31 August
2021

Fair value at
31 August
2020

£000

£000

2.098

1,448

Government Bonds

647

403

Property

262

185

-

36

Equities

Corporate Bonds
Cash

40

49

Other

476

371

3,523

2,492

Total market value of assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2021
21. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Schemes (continued)
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities
2021

2020

£000

£000

(955)

(699)

-

-

(45)

(35)

(1,000)

(734)

2021

2020

£000

£000

5,174

2,960

-

836

955

699

-

-

91

76

Employee contributions

109

93

Actuarial (gain)/loss

919

535

33

(25)

7,281

5,174

2021

2020

£000

£000

2,492

1,461

-

539

46

41

Current service cost
Past service cost
Net interest cost
Total operating charge
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Transfer of existing academy
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

Benefits paid
At 31 August
Changes in the fair value of the charitable group’s share of scheme assets:

At 1 September
Transfer of existing academy
Interest income
Contributions by members

109

93

Contributions by the employer

377

317

Actuarial (loss)/gain

466

66

33

(25)

3,523

2,492

Benefits paid
At 31 August

82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2020

50

22. Related party transactions
a)

During the year Catch22 provided services and recharged costs to The Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Ltd (MAT) amounting to £573k (2020:
£436k). The MAT provided services to Catch22 amounting to £316k (2020: £230k). At the balance sheet date Catch22 was owed £266k by
the MAT (2020: £18k was owed to the MAT).

b)

There were no transactions between Catch22 and Catch22 Social Enterprise Solutions Ltd (Solutions) during the year. At the balance sheet
date Catch22 was owed £109k (2020: £109k) by Solutions.

c)

There were no transactions between Catch22 and Catch22 Social Enterprise Ltd (Auto22) during the year. The amount that was due to Catch22
from Auto22 at 31 August 2021 amounting to £646k (2020: £646k) was written off as irrecoverable in prior years and therefore the balance
due at 31 August 2021 included within the Catch22 financial statements was £nil (2020: £ nil).

d)

During the year, the Pupil Parent Partnership (PPP) donated £nil (2020: £1k) to Catch22 and Catch22 assumed liability for PPP’s outstanding
creditors of £nil (2020: £50k).The amount owed by Catch22 to PPP at the balance sheet date was £nil (2020: £nil).

e)

During the year, Include donated £nil (2020: £253k) to Catch22 and Catch22 assumed liability for Include’s outstanding creditors of
£nil (2020: £22k).The amount owed by Catch22 to Include at the balance sheet date is £nil (2020: £nil).

f)

Community Links Trust:
i.
During the year Catch22 purchased services from Community Links Trust amounting to £nil (2020: £1k) and Catch22 made
payments on behalf of Community Links Trust (net of amounts repaid) to Community Links Trust of £31k (2020: £81k). At the balance
sheet date Catch22 was owed £1k (2020: £14k owed to) by Community Links Trust.
ii.
On 1 July 2019 Community Links Trust entered into an agreement to invest its surplus cash with Catch22, interest of 0.5% above
Barclays bank base rate is payable on the amount invested. At 31 August 2021 Community Links had invested £nil (2020: £2,511k)
with Catch22, which was the amount Catch22 owed Community Links Trust in respect of this agreement.
iii.
On 1 February 2021. The charitable undertaking of Community Links Trust was transferred as a going concern Catch 22 Charity
Limited. All the assets and liabilities were transferred to Catch22 on this date and Community Links Trust ceased to trade as a
separate charitable company from 1 February 2021 (see note 12).

g)

During the year Catch22 recharged costs to Community Links Trading, of £88k (2020: £17k – net of amounts reimbursed). At the balance
sheet date Catch22 was owed £260k, of which £147k was transferred from Community Links Trust, by Community Links Trading. A provision
for the full amount of this debt has been made in Catch22’s financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (2020: £nil) and therefore
the balance due at 31 August 2021 included within the Catch22 financial statements is £nil (2020: £25k).

h)

Catch 22 Charity Limited became the sole member of Ripplez Community Interest Company on 1 January 2021. On that date, Ripplez,
transferred all of its trade and net assets to Catch 22 Charity Limited, except for one contract which continued to be delivered by Ripplez CIC
(see note 12). At the balance sheet date Catch22 was owed £112k by Ripplez. A provision for the full amount of this debt has been made in
Catch22’s financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 and therefore the balance due at 31 August 2021 included within the
Catch22 financial statements is £nil.

i)

Launch22:
i.
On 31 March 2015 Catch22 made a loan of £125k to another charity, Launch22 Limited (formerly Launchpad Labs Limited), at an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.75% per annum. The amount remained due to Catch22 at 31 August 2021 (2020: £125k). The loan
was due for repayment in four equal annual instalments commencing on the second anniversary of the agreement, but remains
outstanding and Catch22 made a full provision against this debt in the financial year ended 31 August 2016.
ii.
Catch22 became the sole member of Launch22 on 23 May 2017 and paid amounts totalling £2k on behalf of Launch22 during the
financial year (2020: £33k). £302k was due to Catch22 at the balance sheet date (2020: £300k). At the balance sheet date a provision
against the full amount of the debt has been made, including an additional £2k provision in the financial year (2020: £33k). Launch22
has not been consolidated into the results of the group for the year ended 31 August 2020 as it is not material. Launch22 closed in
July 2020 and is in the process of being wound-up.

j)

Catch22 Social Enterprise Solutions Limited is a member of Public Services Lab LLP (PSL), which was incorporated on 24 November 2016,
and it controls 32.5% of the voting rights in that entity. There were no transactions between PSL and the Catch22 group during the year and
there were no balances outstanding between these entities at the balance sheet date (2020: £nil).

k)

Catch22 owns 50% of the voting rights in Jobs22 Limited. During the year Catch22 provided services amounting to £218k (2020: £nil) to
Jobs22. At the balance sheet date Jobs22 owed £209k (2020: £nil) to Catch22.

23. Post balance sheet events
a)

On 1 September 2021 Catch22 completed a merger to become the sole member of Code 4000 UK CIC (Company Number: 10377312).
Code 4000’s objects are to carry on activities which benefit the community and in particular (without limitation) to prisoners in UK prisons.
The objects are fulfilled by the teaching of coding to prisoners. All of Code 4000’s services will now be delivered by Catch 22 Charity limited.
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